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PROCEEDINGS

APRIL 17, 2012 7:2 7 a.m.

(Proceedings held in open court, outside
the presence and hearing of the jury.)
THE COURT: Good morning. Please be seated.
May | see the letter you all wanted me to look at
pne bothered to give to me, the one involving Mr. Ellison? |
can't rule on it without looking at it.
Mr. Van Nest, this is your motion. You should gi
me the letter.
MR. VAN NEST: | will, your Honor.
THE COURT: While we're looking for that, do we have
the right number of copies of the glossary and th e timeline?
MR. JACOBS: Yes, your Honor.
THE COURT: Please hand 12 copies to the clerk.
Mr. Jacobs, have these been cleared with the othe
side?
MR. JACOBS: Yes, your Honor.
THE COURT: Dawn, at the appropriate time that | will
mention to you, please give copies to the jury.
THE CLERK: Okay.
THE COURT: I'd like to see one copy of the timeline

myself.

THE CLERK: Okay.

no

ve
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(Whereupon, document was tendered
to the Court.)
THE COURT: May | see the letter that you're trying
to keep out of the of evidence?
MR. VAN NEST: | guess we pulled it out of the
pfficial exhibits.
Do you guys have it at counsel table?
(Whereupon document was tendered
to counsel.)
MR. VAN NEST: Thank you.
(Whereupon document was tendered
to the Court.)
(Brief pause.)
THE COURT: Let me say a few things first about this.
This trial is not Java against Android. This tri al is not
about all of Java.

To some extent the Court has got to give the

plaintiff leeway -- to some extent the Court must give leeway
to counsel because the case has a lot of emails t hat refer to
Java.

| need to ask whoever this is over here to please sit
down. It's a distraction. This is a trial in th e U.S.
District Court. It's not the public library. So please,

please, when the judge is talking, pay attention.

This is not a trial about Java versus Android. N ow,
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you've already used this large number. Mr. Van N
to have permission when -- if, if, and when Mr. E
testifies or anyone else on the plaintiff's side
arge numbers like this, you get to bring up the
there are thousands of patents -- I'm talking abo
VVan Nest -- that Java was covered by thousands of
pnly two patents are being asserted here covered
but has now boiled down to four things. And if h
not to realize that, you go to town on cross-exam
will have a freehand on that.
This is not going to degenerate into an argument
piece for large numbers when everyone in this cou
that the cases boil down to a small number, perha
important, but small number of items of intellect
It is not Java against Android. And | do not app
of the idea that you can you present that theory
As | said, to a limited extent because those emai
refer to it as Java, I'm letting you make that ar
because you, in fairness as an advocate, need tha
but you may not leave the impression that this ca
Java against all of Android. Itis not.
So, Mr. Van Nest, if and when Mr. Ellison tries t
work these large numbers in about what he was wil
for Java, you have the Court's permission to brin

this case, which is this case is not about Java a

est is going
llison

testifies to
fact that

ut now to Mr.
patents and
by copyrights,
e professes

ination. You

rtroom knows

ps very

ual property.

rove

to the jury.

Is
gument
t flexibility,
se is all of

0
ling to pay

g this back to

gainst
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Android. And the Court is going to be diligent a

candid answers. So | give you that heads-up ony

nd require

our side over

there so you will know how much you want to open that door.

This letter is not going to come into evidence at the
plaintiff's behest. I'm talking about the March 12 letter.

t's too self serving. It was an offer for 2 bil lion, but it's
not for Java. It's for Java and lots of other th ings. It's
mpossible to say how much of this was allocated to Java.

And, of course, Mr. Ellison will now, I'm sure, i f
asked by Mr. Boies, of course, he will say it was mostly for
Java. That's after-the-fact Monday morning quart erbacking. It
didn't say that at the time. This letter did not say that at
the time.

So you're not allowed, on the plaintiff's side, t 0
bring this letter to the attention of the jury as some kind of
support for the theory that Java is worth $2 bill ion. So
that's the ruling.

All right. Anything you want to bring up with me
before we bring the jury in and go to the next op ening
statement?

MS. ANDERSON: Yes, your Honor. Christa Anderson for
Google.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MS. ANDERSON: | have a brief question for your Honor

and request, both related to designations of depo

sition
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testimony for playing at trial.

My first question for your Honor is: Our

understanding under the rules is you would like t he completed
packets with all the designated testimony two day s before --

THE COURT: Don't give it to me until -- yes, | do,

but | don't want -- yesterday you gave me somethi ng and my
clerk said, "The lawyers are just giving you this and they are
still talking. They think they are going to work it out, but
ust in case they want to you have all of this." I'm not going
to start looking at your write-ups with that kind of message.
Your duty is to work through the process and get it down to the

bare minimum and then I'm going to rule on it.

MS. ANDERSON: Absolutely. Understood, your Honor.

THE COURT: | will do that very quickly. But don't
give it to me in that kind of a mish-mash form th at came to me
yesterday.

MS. ANDERSON: Yes, your Honor. Actually, I'm not

familiar with -- perhaps it was Oracle's counsel turned it in.
But | just wanted to find out from your Honor wou Id
you like it the day before we plan to play the te stimony or two

days before?
THE COURT: Whatever my ground rules say, | have
forgotten.

MS. ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: Here is what I learned from practice.
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| know that | am sometimes tough on the lawyers f or good
reason, but | learned this from practice.

I'm not tough in one respect that other judges wi Il

make you designate weeks in advance of the trial. | tried a

ot of cases as a lawyer and every time you desig nated
something, it turned out by the time you really w anted to use
t, it went down to about 10 percent of what you originally had
thought you had wanted to use because the points got covered in
some other way and it was not worth putting all t hat other

fluff in there.

So the best way to do it is to postpone the depo

designations until the last possible minute so it will be down
to the real kernel of what you want to use. So't hat's when |
want to see it and that's what those ground rules are designed
to do, is to save you all that work until it real ly matters,
but when -- at that point it does matter and you should give me
just what you propose to use teed up with the obj ections and so
forth. So I'm trying to make it easier for you, not harder.
Okay?

MS. ANDERSON: We appreciate that your Honor. And
that brings me to my last request for your Honor.
Relatedly, we are having an issue with Oracle's
counsel vastly overdesignating testimony in these five-day

Notice of Deposition designations.

THE COURT: They will then read every word of it.
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They will not be allowed to withdraw it. They wi
time putting in large amounts of fluff. If that
going on, they are going to use their time up acc
that's fine. Why are you complaining? But that
trick and I'm not going to allow it. They are go

every word of it, if that's what they do.

t by the end of today, but otherwise you're goin
every word of it. It will burn up your good time
complain to me. It's an old trick to overdesigna

understand that. Do not do that.

Honor.

THE COURT: All right. What's your next point?

which Mr. Paige is going to address on exhibits t

up with Mr. Larry Page today. Mr. Paige has been

meet-and-confer with Oracle on it.

THE COURT: All right.

potential issue with Trial Exhibit 431. It was o

Mr. Page's --

MR. PAIGE: Good morning. We have an issue,

Il waste their
is what is
ordingly,

is an old

ing to read

MS. ANDERSON: All right. Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. So I'm going to let them fix

g to read
, and don't

te. |

MS. ANDERSON: We appreciate that. Thank you, your

MR. VAN NEST: We have one other issue, your Honor,

hat may come

doing the

THE COURT: How many Pages do we have here?

MR. PAIGE: | spell it right your Honor, P-A-I-G-E.

riginally in
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THE COURT: Hand it up to me. | don't remember it.
MR. PAIGE: Of course, your Honor.

(Whereupon, document was tendered

to the Court and counsel.)

THE COURT: Thank you. 431.

MR. PAIGE: It was originally in Mr. Page's, P-A-G-E,

designations for today. It's since been removed, so it's taken
put that issue of having it used with him at -- i n his
deposition, but Oracle still says they are not ce rtain whether
they are going to use it with him when he appears live today.
And so we wanted to raise with your Honor the fac t that pages

three through six of this document --

THE COURT: Who does Mr. Page work for?

MR. PAIGE: He works for Google, your Honor.

THE COURT: And why are you complaining about this
then? This is a party admission, isn't it?

MR. PAIGE: Your Honor, it's a question of what's in

here contains estimates going forward into 2013. This is
highly sensitive information that Google has not released to
the public --

THE COURT: Oh, come on. Oh, come on. Thisis a
public trial. Denied. Denied.
MR. PAIGE: Your Honor, your Honor --

THE COURT: Denied. Denied.

MR. PAIGE: It's not relevant to the phase, any issue
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n Phase 1.
THE COURT: Too bad. It's a public trial. If they

want to bring it out, they are going to be allowe dto doit.
MR. PAIGE: It's 403 evidence, your Honor, in

Phase 1.

THE COURT: It's not. It's not. They are going to

be allowed to do that.

MR. PAIGE: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. What else do you want to raise?
MR. JACOBS: We have one question, your Honor.
THE COURT: Sure.

MR. JACOBS: It has to do with exhibits and whether

exhibits must come in through a witness or not.

We have party admission exhibits. We would like at
an appropriate time, maybe early in the case move , to into
evidence, draw whatever objection we're going to get at that
time. We don't think it will be very compelling and we don't
think -- we think on reflection Google may decide not to object
at all, and then with the admission publish the d ocument to the
jury.

| think this is particularly important given your
admonition that they have to look at evidence, no t at attorney
argument. So it seemed to us to be advisable to move some of
these exhibits -- some of these documents into ev idence early.

THE COURT: Okay. Here is the way that part works.
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lt's okay if the lawyers agree that something can
evidence out objection. For example, if you want
now what that three or four exhibits be placed in
will ask the other side and they probably would -
what they will say. Let's say they say, "Fine, n
So then we make a note that those are in evidence
some appropriate point | would allow you to publi
ury without any comment. You wouldn't have any
guess, to explain what it is, but they would be i
Maybe could use -- have some witness explain what
as far as I'm concerned, you have that flexibilit
the other side agrees.

If the other side does not agree and says, "No, w
object to it coming into evidence," | listen -- y
have to -- let's say they say it's hearsay on the
a business record or whatever the objection is, t
to lay the foundation. Do it the hard way. So i
just come in by Court order. | would have to hav
for it.

So maybe the best way to do it would be take an
example right now of one you would like to use in

then we can see how it works.

minute.

MR. JACOBS: Okay, your Honor. Give us just a

come into

to move right
to evidence, |
- | don't know
0 objection.”

, and then at
sh them to the
witness, |

n evidence.
they are. So

y as long as

e
ou know, they
y say it's not
hen you have
t would not

e foundation

that way and

MR. VAN NEST: Your Honor, could | make a suggestion
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on this --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. VAN NEST: (Continuing) -- that I think will save
time?

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. VAN NEST: We didn't understand that that
procedure could work. In light of that, if they have some
exhibits they would like to discuss with us durin g the break or
whenever, we can do that. They simply sent us a long list of
exhibits not attached to a witness and said, "We' re going to
use these." And | said, "Wait a minute. | thoug ht they have
to come in through a witness." We're certainly w illing to
do --

THE COURT: Usually they do. If you do it the
old-fashioned way, they have to come in through a witness. But
in almost all trials there are a few documents -- | wouldn't
say hundreds of documents. | would say maybe in a trial like
this two dozen in the entire trial, where one sid e will get two
dozen in by stipulation. The other side would ge t two dozen in
by stipulation and at the right time you show the m to the jury,

but I would not think 100 documents per side.
MR. JACOBS: We sent over 14, your Honor.
THE COURT: Fourteen is in the ballpark of

reasonableness. | think you would get the same ¢ ourtesy from

them. | encourage it.
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But at the same time if you have a legitimate
pbjection -- and there will be, of course, legiti

pbjections -- you're entitled to assert your obje

mate

ction.

MR. VAN NEST: With that guidance, your Honor, what |

suggest is that the parties meet-and-confer and w
come up with an agreed list and get them in.

THE COURT: But they have got to put on their
withesses soon. So you should do that at the ver

ppportunity so that they are not prejudiced.

e perhaps can

y first

MR. VAN NEST: We'll do it. Thank you, your Honor.

MR. JACOBS: Thank you, your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. What else is next? Can we
see if all members of the jury are present?
MR. JACOBS: It's a tiny thing, your Honor, but
it's -- well, it's worth raising. You had asked
of key documents. We each gave you 10.
THE COURT: That's great. That's all | need.
MR. JACOBS: Okay.
THE COURT: If I need more, | will ask for it, but 10
is -- you know, I've learned the hard way. Joe A
try a case. He only needed two documents. One w
document in the file of the other side and the ot
Magna Carta. And he never lost a case.
You know, | need more than that. | need 20 docum

in a case like this. But if | need more than tha

for a binder

lioto used to
as the worst

her was the

ents

t, I'm going
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to see what they are and you will give them to me and | will
ask for them. | have so little space up here, | can't deal
with about more than 20 documents. So that's fin e.

MR. JACOBS: Thank you, your Honor.
THE COURT: Yes? They are here?
All right. Before we get started, are you prepar ed
to go with your opening statement, Mr. Van Nest?
MR. VAN NEST: | am, your Honor. | would just a
moment to set it up.
THE COURT: How long do you need?
MR. VAN NEST: About 30 seconds.
THE COURT: All right. You set up and then we'll
bring the jury in.
(Brief pause.)
THE COURT: I'm going to give these documents to the
jury after they are seated. How is that? Is tha t okay, Mr.
Van Nest?

MR. VAN NEST: That's fine. | will wait for your

queue.
THE COURT: Are we now ready?
MR. VAN NEST: Yes.
THE COURT: All set?
Wait, wait, Dawn. | do -- | want to say to all
members of the two teams here, and for that matte r members of
the public. | have a strong view that when someo ne is speaking
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n the courtroom, like a lawyer giving an opening statement to
the jury or a closing or examining a witness, tha t lawyer has
the absolute right to the full attention of the | ury and any
hacking and coughing or paper shuffling, no. You cannot do
anything. | don't even like it when people get u p and go back
and forth out that door because a member of the | ury may look
and see and lose track of what the thoughtis. S o really, |

ask you to be considerate to the counsel who have the floor and

to be absolutely quiet.

The other thing | wanted to say, Mr. Cooper, | am
going to introduce you and the 706 expert at the appropriate
time, but | don't think it's the right time yet. It may be
much later in the case.

MR. COOPER: Thank you.

THE COURT: | did not forget. I just think it's too
much to lay on the jury this early in the case.

MR. COOPER: We understand. Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

Are we now ready, Mr. Van Nest?

MR. VAN NEST: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Let bring in the jury.

(Jury enters courtroom at 7:48 a.m.)

THE COURT: Okay. Welcome back and good morning.

Have a seat. Everybody over there doing good?

(Jury nodding affirmatively.)
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THE COURT: Enjoying the coffee and the Federal
donuts?
JUROR THOMPSONThank you.
THE COURT: We want to hand something out to you, and
Dawn will hand them out now.
(Whereupon, documents were tendered
to the jury.)
THE COURT: As I've said to you, we have excellent
awyers in this case and they have done something that |

totally approve of and it will help you.

First of all, there is a timeline that you alread y
saw and we're going to give each of you your own individual
copy. What | recommend you do is fold it over li ke this
(indicating) and stick it in the back of your lit tle steno pad
and whenever a witness is on the stand and refers to a date of
some meeting, maybe you can look at this and get a rough idea

of where it fits in the overall timeline.
And this is stipulated to; correct, counsel?
MR. JACOBS: Yes, your Honor.
MR. VAN NEST: Yes, your Honor.
THE COURT: So the facts are agreed to by both sides
and you can take this as evidence in the case.
Now, after that is handed out, we have got a seco nd

one-page document. One-page documents are good. We get things

down to one page.
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(Whereupon, document was tendered
to the jury.)
THE COURT: This is another one that you can fold
pver. Both sides have agreed to it, right?
MR. JACOBS: Yes, your Honor.

MS. ANDERSON: Yes.

a glossary of maybe 30 terms like API, AOSP and s
these are terms that you're going to be seeing in
trial. You don't need to memorize any of this ri
just a handy reference sheet for you to look at f
time in case something is confusing and they are
abbreviation. These will be terms that come up f
okay? So I would recommend you fold that one ove
in the back of your pad, too.
Now, you can make notes on these. It's up to you
We will not look at your notes. When the case is
shred all your notes and never look at them, but
your use. These two handouts. We will not look
you're free to add, for example, to the timeline.
put in some important meeting that you think is i
that's not on the timeline.
Obviously on a timeline like this, this is just t
bare bones. There will be several important even

occurred in this case that are not on the timelin

THE COURT: This one looks more complicated. It has

o forth. And
the case, the
ght now. It's
rom time to
using an
requently,

r and put it

over, we

this is for

at them and
You might

mportant
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ts that

e. Butif we
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put everything on there, it wouldn't be very usef ul, so we
scaled it back for your benefit.

All right. So there we go. In due course all of

this will become clearer, but we'll get there one step ata
time.

Now, you will remember yesterday we had an openin g
statement by counsel for Oracle, Mr. Mike Jacobs. And now
we're going to have the opening statement by the other side,

Mr. Van Nest. And that's spelled V-A-N N-E-S-T.

And | say this about both of the opening statemen ts,
what I've already said to you. None of it is evi dence yet.
The evidence comes when the trial starts with wit nesses and so
forth. This is an opportunity for you to get a p review of what
the lawyers expect will be proven or not proven. And so itis
a very important opportunity, but, again, itis n ot evidence.

At this time on behalf of Google, Mr. Van Nest wi Il
give the opening statement. The floor is yours.
MR. VAN NEST: Thank you, your Honor.

OPENING STATEMENT

MR. VAN NEST: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.
Welcome back.

As you know, my name is Bob Van Nest, and it's my

responsibility and my privilege during our trial to represent
Google, one of the leading consumer technology co mpanies in the
world today. This is my opportunity to give you arecap, a
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review of the evidence, what we expect it will pr
So the phenomenal success of Android is due to th
hard work of Google engineers, their ingenuity an
decision to build Android using open source, free
technology, so that Android could be made availab
everyone. The whole idea of Android was to get |

of as many consumers as possible.

used to build parts of Android, is free and open.
the public domain for years. The Java language w
back in the 90's and Sun made it public. They ma
without any charge, without any cost because Sun
system, a language system, that could be used by
over the world to build products using Java that
services and support to. So that language has be
It's in the public domain and as you heard last n
no claim, no claim in this lawsuit that there is
with using the Java language.

Now, those Application Program Interfaces, those
you heard about, they are necessary just to use t
You'll hear testimony that without the APIs, the
virtually useless and programmers learning Java,
taught in college courses all over the country, t

to use the APIs when they learn how to use the la

Sun has always promoted the APIs as a fundamental

Now, the Java language, the Java language which w

ove.

d to Google's
and open
le to

t in the hands

as
It's been in

as created way

de it public

wanted a

developers all

Sun could sell

en public.

ight, there is

anything wrong

APIs

he language.
language is
which is

hey learn how
nguage. And

part of the
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anguage. So the language is free. The APIs are

use the language, so they are free, too.

because the Java language is free and the APIs ar
of the language. So Google didn't need a license
source code, the computer code within Android tha
applications, that was written from scratch by Go
or taken from other open source products, other o
platforms, that were open and available for use.
in Android, the stuff that makes it run written b
original Google work or work of third parties don
Android.

Now, yes, it's true that at the very beginning of
Android, Google and Sun negotiated for a partners
Android together, and you'll hear about those neg
But when those negotiations failed, Google engine
Android on their own without any Sun technology w
It took three years, thousands of engineering hou

hundreds of millions of dollars to build Android.

this happened way back in 2007 -- it was released
public, posted on a website so everybody could se
Sun, what was in Android: The Java language, the

APIs and a whole lot of other stuff.

Sun didn't object. Sun didn't complain. Sun did

Google didn't need a license to use Java in Andro

Now, when Android was released to the public -- a

necessary to

id
e free as part
. The actual
t runs all the
ogle engineers
pen source
So the code
y Google,

ated to

hip to build
otiations.
ers built
hatsoever.

rs, and

nd
to the
e, including

se 37 Java
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say, "You need a license." They knew all this wa

chief executive officer, Jonathan Schwartz, who w

witness in this case, he will be presented by Goo

presentation of evidence, Jonathan Schwartz who w

posted on a public Sun website the following:
"Google, congratulations. We welcome Android
to the Java community. We support Android's
use of Java. We want to help because Android

has strapped a set of rockets onto Java."

Those were the words of Sun's CEO back in 2007.

We'll see them a little bit later this morning.

And not only that, but in the years following, 20
2008, 2009, both publicly and in private communic
directly to the top brass at Google, Sun said, "W
Android's use of Java. What can we do to help?
do? We would like to be part of it."

So why are we here? Well, the claims you heard |
night, the claim that Google has copied these API
raised until much later, until after Oracle came
had purchased Sun, and had tried and failed thems
in the smart phone market. So in 2009 Oracle rea
agreement to buy Sun and buy Java. And they were
interested in getting into the smart phone market

compete with the iPhone and compete with Android.

a big deal for them.

s open. Sun's
ill be a key
gle during our

as running Sun

07,
ations
e support
What can we
ast

S, that wasn't
on the scene,
elves to get
ched an

very
themselves to

So that was
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So first they tried to build their own Java phone
That failed. Then they tried to buy smart phone
on the market. That failed. Then they actually
partner with Google. They tried to sell Sun tech
technology to Google, so they could become part o
too. That failed. It was too late. Then and on
Oracle do a complete about-face, a complete about
the claim that Android was wrong. And now what t
they want to share in Google's success in Android
they had absolutely nothing to do with the Androi
the Android product or any of it. And that's why
It's not about them protecting their I.P. It's n
about them protecting the Java community. They w
in Android's profits without having done a thing
about.
So if you take a look at your monitor, I'm going
review what the evidence will show on four key is
First issue: Sun gave the Java language to the
public. | don't expect this will even be dispute
no claim in the case that using the Java language
Second point: Google built Android using free an
open technologies. There are 15 million lines of
15 million lines of code in Android, all written

engineers. They didn't need a license because th

Sun technology to build Android.

technology out
tried to
nology, Oracle
f Android,
ly then did
-face and make
hey want is
even though
d platform,
we're here.

ot
ant to share

to bring that

to

sues.

d. There is

IS wrong.

code.
by Google
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Sun publicly approved Android's use of Java. Tha t
proves both the first and second points. Sun was fully aware
n 2007 of everything that was in Android. It wa S published on
a website. They knew everything that Google was doing. They

stood up in public and approved it.

And the final point is that Google made fair use of
the Java language APIs in Android. No one before Google had
been able to use Java to build a successful smart phone.
Nobody. Sun tried and failed and, as I just said a minute ago,

Oracle tried and failed.

Google transformed Java. They transformed those APIs
into something that would work on a smart phone a nd that means
they made fair use of those APIs in Android.

Let's start on our first point. Sun gave Java
language to the public.

Secondly.

Next slide, please.

The Java programming language is open and free fo r
anyone to use. Not a dispute. Back in the 90's Sun made the
language open. It's taught in colleges. It's ta ught to
programmers. It's out there. There are thousand s of Java

developers. It's been around a long time.

Mr. Jacobs said last night, | think his words wer e,
"You can use the Java language to your heart's co ntent," and
there is no claim in this case that using the lan guage is wrong
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Or inappropriate in any way whatsoever.
Now, Mr. Ellison knows this. He'll be one of our
witnesses today. | had a chance to take his depo
That's part of our process here. | asked him:
"QUESTION: And you understand that nobody
owns the Java programming language right?
"ANSWER: That's correct.
"QUESTION: Anybody can use that without any
royalty at all?
"ANSWER: Correct."
Mr. Ellison is well aware.
And the names of these API packages -- there are
packages. And as Mr. Jacobs mentioned, there are
within the packages and methods. I'll getintot
of it in a minute. All those names are free to u
copyright a name. So there is no dispute about t
these package names, all these -- these are the p
here, 37 of them. All free to use. Anybody can
They have been used by developers and companies f
All the class names. The classes are organized i
packages. They are all free to use.
The method names, the methods are organized into
classes. It's part of the system of organization

use. No dispute about it. Everybody can use the

Now, what about these APIs? These Application

sition.

37
classes
hat structure
se. You can't
he names. All

ackage names

use those.
or years.
nto
the
. Freeto
se.
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Programming Interfaces? According to Sun, they a

what about these APIs? What are they?
He said:
"These elements here are like parts of
speech. So nouns, verbs, adjectives and so

on.

And what he's referring to are the APIs names and

packages.

re fundamental

to the Java language. This is from one of the Su n websites.
Java.lang is one of the 37 API packages at issue in this case
and this is what Sun says about it:

"Fundamental to the design of the programming

language."

You can't use the language without the APIs and t
anguage is free.

This was a book they published back in the 90's.
They wanted people to use the APIs. That was the whole point.
Let's get people hooked on Java. And part of tha twas let's
show them all these APIs.

Here is Volume 1, Cor e Packages. This describes the
libraries that are the foundation of the Java lan guage. The
foundation of the language. These are the genera | purpose
libraries fundamental to every Java program.

Not only that, their expert in this case testifie
he will be testifying as a witness here -- and we asked him

he
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He says:
"Using those parts of speech, package names,
classes, interface names, relationships” --
that's what you're going to hear that they
are complaining about -- "you use those just
like you use the parts of speech.”
So imagine being told, "You can use English. You
free to speak English, but don't use the nouns or
the parts of speech.” That's the claim that Orac
in this case.

We asked their head architect -- he will be here

testify, too, Mark Reinhold:

without the APIS?

"ANSWER: Nothing."

Nothing. This is what he said:

"ANSWER: You would be able to write basic

computations that never did any 10."

That means Input/Output. So | could write someth
but | couldn't print it. | couldn't put it on my
couldn't communicate with the outside world.

"You couldn't communicate with the outside

world or the underlying platform. You could

write -- you know, you could do computations

on numbers and strings, but you wouldn't be

"QUESTION: What can you do with the language

the verbs or

le is making

screen.

re

to

ing,
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able to do anything with them."

That's the point that the APIs are necessary to u
the language, and the language is out there for f

Now, this is to the point that other companies, o
groups wrote platforms using the same APIs that t
accusing Google of using years ago with no compla

This is one example. GNU Classpath was a group t
created an open source platform for programming i
used all the APIs that they are complaining about

Now, just like Google they wrote their own comput
code in the libraries themselves. They used the
and the names, but they wrote their own computer
said fine. No problem with GNU.

Same thing happened in 2005. This is all before
Android. Apache Harmony. They also created a gr
libraries. They used the APIs, which were open a
part of the language, and they wrote their own co
the libraries. Sun said fine.

Next slide proves it.

Jonathan Schwartz, who will testify live, this is
what he said in public back in '07 about Harmony.

"There is no reason that Apache cannot ship

Harmony today."

se
ree. Okay?

ther
hey are
int from Sun.

hat
n 1998. It
here.

er
API structure

codes. Sun

oup of Java
nd free and

mputer code in

Harmony was the Apache product that used these AP Is

in the same way that Android does. And companies

used Harmony,
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IBM. I've listed some of the products that IBM u
built out of Harmony. Again, with no license fro
ike Android.
Okay. So let's talk about Android. | want to ta
you inside a smart phone and talk about how Andro
and how Google engineers built it.
Next slide.
So we know what Google is. One of the -- it's th
eading search platform in the world and we've he
"Google" a number of times in court already. We
is.
Google's business model is pretty simple. Give t
product free to a consumer and then charge the ad
when we do a search, we have to look at some ads.
Google makes money.
And these next two products, same way. Google
same thing. Free to use to consumer. Gmail, fre
consumer. Some ads, we look at the ads. Maybe t
little bit annoying, but that's how -- that's how
product for free.
Now, important point. All these products were go
great on laptops and desktops, but Google wanted
great on a mobile device. And back then in the m

all of us were using these cell phones (indicatin

You're going to hear the word "feature phone.

sed, they

m Sun, just

ke

id came to be

ard the word

know what that

he
vertisers. So

That's how

Ma ps,
e to the
he ads are a

we get the

ing
to make them
id-thousands,
g), right?

Feature
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phone." | never heard that either, but | use "ce Il phone."
But "feature phone" is what the business guys cal | it.
And a feature phone is fine. You can make calls and
do some texting and play basic games, but you're not going to
surf the web on this or check out restaurants or put Google
Maps on here. So the whole genesis of Android wa s. Canwe
build a platform like this on which our products can be used,
you know, more efficiently? Let's put -- let's | et people get

put on the go.

How do you do that? Research and development. H ere
is Google campus down in Mountain View. 13,000 G oogle
employees down there. Four out of ten do researc h. Four out
of ten Google employees do R&D for all the produc ts that they
make available. And Android was no different. T hat took three
years, dozens of engineers, and thousands of engi neering hours,

hundreds of millions of dollars.

You're going to hear from two of the top brass at

Google. Eric Schmidt is now the chairman at Goog le. He was
the CEO. He is the one that talked directly with Schwartz and
will tell you that Schwartz at Sun was always awa re of what
Google was doing and was always supportive. So t his idea that
there was a difference between public and private , hot going to

be borne out by Mr. Schwartz.

Andy Rubin, he's the -- we call him the father of

Android. He started a start-up. Android, he had the idea for
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this smart phone platform and he was purchased, b
purchased by Google and he will be an important w
Let me reintroduce our Google representative whil
I'm talking about Google. Catherine Lacavera, wh
director of litigation at Google, and she's going
throughout the trial.
These two gentlemen will be witnesses to the hard
work that Google did to build Android, which they
themselves. Bob Lee and Dan Bornstein will both
at our trial.
Next slide.
What is the Android Platform? Well, the Android
platform is the operating system that makes your
run. And Google makes it available for free to t
you see on the slide here. They make it availabl
Samsung and Motorola and HTC and all the companie
build these. They get Android for free and they
phones that we all -- some of us purchase.
They also give it away to developers. Now, we ha
one of a prospective jurors yesterday talk about
app. Well, if you have a weather app on here or
app or a recipe app or you have a sports app or w
those are all applications. Those are computer p

somebody has to write, and developers do that. T

100,000 Android developers developing application

usiness was

itness.

o is the

to be with us

did by

be witnesses

smart phone
wo groups that
e free to

s that want to

build the

d
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and as of now, about 450,000 applications.

So that's how the Android system runs. Open sour

made available for free.

Next one.

Now, I'm going to put up my timeline. It has a f
more entries on it than the agreed-upon timeline,
the same period. And | want to talk now about th
the timing of Android.

So you'll notice we start here in July of 2005, b
all of the Java programming language and GNU Clas
Apache, they already had occurred. That's in the
earlier than Android.

So in 2005 Android acquired -- Google acquired
Android from Mr. Rubin, and Mr. Rubin became a Go
and they had a key decision to make. The key dec
is really important -- are we going to buy or bui
anybody, anybody that's launching a new product h
choice. "Buy" means can we partner with another
already has technology and use that in Android.
option.

And so Google talked to a lot of companies about
that, including Sun. And what they said to Sun w
to have a partnership and build Android together.

Could | have the next slide?

This is an email. You will see a number of these

ce
ew
but it covers
e story and
ut
spath and
90's and

ogle employee,
ision -- this

|d? Because
as that
company that

That's the buy

as, We'd like
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This is an email between Eric Schmidt, who was th e boss at
Google at the time, and Scott McNealy, who was th e chairman of
the board at Sun. And what Mr. Schmidt is saying Is:

“I'm in a product review. We're looking at a
very interesting partnership proposal. We
have engaged with Sun's team in an effort to
form an alliance. Sun and Google should do
this together.”

They were talking about a partnership to build

Android together. And in that scenario, yes, Goo gle would need
a license. If you're going to buy Sun technology , hot the

APIs, not the language, but the actual code and t he libraries,
that would have accelerated this process a lot be cause it took

Google three years to do it on their own.

They could have bought it and all those emails yo u
saw -- you'll see a bunch more today -- We need a license. We
need a license. That's all in this period early on, '05 and
'06. But that never happened. That agreement wa S never

reached. Sun and Google couldn't come to terms.

Google wanted to make Android available as an ope n
source platform and Sun wanted to charge for it. They wanted
to charge the handset makers and charge developer s and so on
for using the platform. So they couldn't reach a greement. And
what happened next was Google built Android by it self. They
used their own technology, their own people. The y didn't use
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Sun technology.

They would have used Sun technology if this agree
had come to pass, but it didn't. And so this lon
the time in which it took Google to generate the
write the libraries themselves, to write the enti

And let's see what that platform looks like. 1w
to take you inside the handset now so you can see
technology is.

What I'm showing here is something that Google
publishes on its website. This is the Android PI
wasn't made for this litigation. It exists and i
since the day Android launched. It shows the lay
want to walk through those layer.

The top layer, the application layer, that's what
see as a user. So we have a home page. That's a
application. We have a phone. That's an applica
a browser, if you want to surf of the web. That'
application. These applications were all designe
There is no claim by Oracle of any use of their t
there, none.

Application framework. To make these apps work,
need a framework below that. And you can see som
here: An activity manager, a window manager. Th

the things you need to make your applications run

designed by Google. No claim by Oracle of anythi

ment
g period is
platform to
re platform.

ant

what the

atform. It
t's existed

ers, and |

we
ctually an

tion. We have
san

d by Google.

echnology
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e of the names
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framework.
Then the cool part of the phone, the cool part of
phone is the libraries. Not the Java libraries.
are complaining about. The libraries in Android
you all the hot features that people like, and th
ppen source products that Google developed with o

So take, for example, our graphics. High-end

an open source project from Open GL. Let's say |
the web. WebKit. That's an open source project
built by Apple. FaceBook. You can look at Amazo
look at Zappo's. When you're going on the web, y
WebKit. Again, has nothing to do with Oracle.
Let's say you want to watch a video, your grandso
video. That's from Media Frameworks. High-end v
that. Open source, created by other people.
Now, below this layer there is another layer, the
Linux kernel. Let's call that the basement. Lin
source product. Linux was modified by Google to
Android. It's sort of a plumbing.
Power management. That's your battery, display,
camera, your memory in there. That's all the bas
not even written in the Java language. That's in
different language.

15 million lines of code. That's what we have

graphics that people like. Play a game, Angry Bi

the
Not what they
are what give
ey are all

ther people.
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reviewed, 15 million lines of code. 57,000 separ
created by Google and its partners.
All right. What's the dispute about in this case
What are we talking about here? Let's go to the
the core libraries and open those up. There are
ibraries and there are 37 library packages that
complaining about.
Now, I'm showing these packages in blue because t
are filled in. I'm showing the content inside.
complaint about that content. That content was a
Google. The complaint is about something a lot m
call it abstract.
The structure selection and organization. That's
what their claim is. That's the heart of their ¢
you use the same organization of these API names
and classes. Those -- that structure and organiz
nothing more than a system for organizing Java.
of organization, and that's why it's necessary to
you're going to program in Java. That's what we'
about.
So let's go to the next slide.
What is an API? They didn't explain to you what
APl was or how it worked. I'm going to try my da

that because | think it's important to understand

The APIs are the words that programmers use when

ate files

runtime and
51 core

Oracle is

There is no
Il written by

ore, let's

laim, is that

and objects

ation is

It's a system
use it if

re talking

rndest to do

it.

hey

an

they
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are writing in Java. And let's give an example.
words that a programmer would use when they are g
up some function.
This is a developer. Let's say she works for Ama
She is going to develop a new app for Amazon that
to download all their stuff and sort products by
might want to know what the pricing is.
Next slide.
So let's say she wants to create a program. One
the things you would need in that program is some
you which is the highest price and which is the |
has a function called max(). Max() is simply cho
greater of two numbers. It's a math function. C
greater of two numbers. And, obviously, if 'm g
this application, | need to sort my prices by num
higher than $59? Okay, itis. Let's putitont
less than $59? Yeah, it's less. Let's put it on
All that is is the idea of choosing the greater o

Next slide.

See, what my developer is going to do here on the

left, she's got max(), which simply means choose
the two numbers. On the right is the code. That
original source code that actually does the work.

say, "l want to choose the greater of two numbers

code on the right -- whoops, | can't do that. Th

These are the

oing to call

zon.
will allow us

price. We

of
thing to tell
owest. Java
osing the
hoosing the
oing to create
ber. Is $64
op. Is $51
the bottom.

f two numbers.

the greater of
's the

When you
," that source

e source code
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on the right below the title there, that tells th
what to do.
This is the Android platform so all that source c
was written by Google. All that source code was
Google. No dispute about that.
But there are other platforms, like GNU that |
mentioned a minute ago. They use the same Java,
but they wrote their own source code. Different
did.
Third example. Sun, they use max(). They have

different source code to do the same thing.

So these APIs are the names and the organization.

The names are free to use, remember. The name ma
not protected. The class that it's in, the metho
all unprotected. So what is it that we're talkin
we say the structure of these APIS?
Mr. Jacobs kept talking about API design. He tal
about API design. He said blueprint. They are n
It's not a book. It's not a novel. All they are
organization system so my developer can find the
code to use in her program.
Next slide.
So how do we illustrate this? There's my source

code. | want to be able to find it, so | have to

How would | do that? | might put it in a folder

e computer

ode

written by

API, max(),

from what Sun

x(), that's
d, the package

g about when

ked
ot blueprints.
is an

right source

organize it.

called max().
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Obviously, this isn't inside the computer. This
This is an illustration of how this works.

| might put the max() folder in a drawer called M
because it's a math function. And then | might p
function in a package here called Java.lang and i
API| package.

Now, look at the top there. It says
Java.lang.Math.max(). Those are the words the de
when she wants the source code in the folder to w
source code written by Google or, if you're using
written by Sun or GNU, they are all using the sam
is free to use, to bring up and call that source
action.

So now let's look at the next slide.

So now I've got my developer. The system is set.

source code is written. It's in my folder. My d
writes at the top Java.lang.Math.max() because sh

find a source code.

And by the way, programmers are taught this day o

This is programming one in Java. They all know t
They are taught in college. They are in books.
published. They are all out there for people to
She writes java.lang.Math.max() and, boom, the

Java.lang cabinet has the Math drawer. She opens

drawer and the max() folder is in it. And then w

IS an analogy.

ath,
ut the math

t's in that

veloper writes
ork. The
Sun's code

e word, which

code into

My
eveloper

e wants to

ne.
hese APIs.
They are

use.

the Math

hat happens?
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The source code comes out of the folder and into
So just by writing the API, Java.lang.Math.Max(),
that source code appears and comes into the progr

And now | actually created -- excuse me, your Hon
I'm going to approach the cabinet. | actually cr
cabinet to illustrate this because, again, | thin
mportant for everybody to understand what we're
when we say structure and organization of an API.

This is a cabinet. This is the Java language
package. It happens to be a file cabinet. There
these that they are complaining about. They are
complaining about using the language, because tha
names were all free. The complaint is about the
organization. But you need that in order to prog

So if I want to find this max() function. | writ
java.lang.Math.max() and the system knows | go to
package. | open the Math drawer.

Now, in the Math drawer are all the methods that
in the math class in Java. And by the way, they
organized alphabetically. Nothing too magic abou
are organized alphabetically. But one of them wo
max() folder. And | take my max() folder out and
the source code. That's the original source code

wrote. This is what Google was trying to purchas

This is what would have made Android happen faste

her program.

am.
or.

eated a

Kit's

talking about

are 37 of
not

t's free. The
system of

ram in Java.

the java.lang

are
are typically
tthat. They

uld be my

inside it is

that Google

e from Sun.

r, but that
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didn't happen. And all this source code was writ ten original
from scratch by Google.

And what we're talking about here is nothing more
than this system of organization that has been ar ound for years
and programmers had been using whenever they prog ram in Java.
That's what is at issue in this case.

Our point is the language is free and you need th at
system to find the source code that Google wrote.

Now, | want to drive that home with two other sli des.

Let's go forward if we can, Ben. Let's go forwar dto
the source code.

All right. Let's pause it... Pause it there.

(Document displayed)
All right. That's just the illustration of what we
did. Java.lang is the cabinet. That's the packa ge. Mathis

the class. Max is the method.
The source code inside Android is very different from
the source code inside a Sun or Oracle product.

Here is just two examples. This is on the left,

Oracle's version of the methodstring.compareTo. And on the
right is Google's version. The first line of eac h of them is
the same because that's the API that calls the so urce code into

play. That's the organizational system.

But the source code is different. The

implementation. How you tell the computer what t 0 do. That's
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all different. Here's one example.
I've got a second example. And we're talking now
about 15 million lines of code.
And I'll pause to comment on one thing that
Mr. Jacobs said last night. He did say there was
said, "Not a lot." That tends to be a big overst
copying, the only copying of source code they are
about is nine lines of code, nine out of 15 milli
t's trivial. Inconsequential. They scoured the
system to find evidence of copying and out of 15
they found nine.
We'll explain what happened to those nine. Those
nine were written by an engineer named Josh Bloch
originally written when he worked at Sun. He cam
He came to the Android team late after Android ha
out there. He wrote a new file that he thought w
neat. He originally wrote it for Java, and he ga
and Sun said this is neat.
The mistake he made was he put the file in Androi
and those nine lines of code that he wrote back a
shouldn't have been in there, because the Android
knew and the engineers knew you shouldn't -- we'r
Sun's source code. The language is free. The AP

The source code is not. This is trivial.

Can we show this, Ben? Let go back one.

copying. He
atement. The
complaining
on. Nine --
whole Android

million lines

. They were

e to Google.

d already been
as really

ve it to Sun

t Sun
developers
e not using

Is are free.

Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR.
Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR.

Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Case3:10-cv-0356 1 \ikn POFYEN1Sed , FilsIQaf/L2

Page43 of 20Pe6

Okay. Nine lines of code. The code file it's in
024 lines total. So it's trivial right there. B

compare it to all of Android, it disappears; nine

15 million. And even their expert couldn't assig
whatsoever to it. None. No value.

Okay. Let's go back to the chronology and we'll
through the rest. In 2007 -- I'm going to be tal

what happened after Google developed Android. Th

t. It was never a secret. It's open source. S

we have been talking about, all that source code,

Java language, anybody in the world could downloa

what it was, including Sun. And Sun was well awa

earlier discussions that Google was developing th

platform based on the Java language and they were

that Google was using the Java APIs.

did not object. Sun did not say, "You need a lic

didn't say, "Oh, you've copied the APIs."
This is what Sun said. Right on the screen.

Jonathan Schwartz on a Sun-sponsored website said
"Congratulations Google." Congratulations.
"l want to add my voice to the chorus of
others from Sun." Everybody at Sun.

"Heartfelt congratulations on the

announcement of their new Java/Linux phone

ut if you
lines in

n any value

walk

king now about

ey published
0 everything
the APIs, the
d it and see
re from

e Android

well aware

So when Google released the Android kit in 2007,

ense." Sun

Sun
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platform, Android."

Don't tell me they didn't know exactly what was g
pn. It's a Java platform. "Congratulations."

He says at the bottom:

"We have obviously done a lot of work -- a

ton of work to support developers on all Java

based platforms and we're pleased to add

Google's Android to the list."

We're going to support Android, too. Just like o
Java platforms and other development platforms.

He went on to say:

"Google and the Open Handset Alliance just

strapped another set of rockets, another set

of rockets to the communities' momentum.

With friends like Google and Red Hat, it sure

seems like the momentum behind Java is on the

rise."

In other words this wasn't a secret. This was
public. This was Jonathan Schwartz telling the w
welcome Android. We welcome its use of Java. It
thing for us.

And this wasn't just what they said publicly. He
said it privately, too. Here is an internal emai

during the course of the case between Mr. Schwart

Schmidt at Google right around the same time, Nov

orld, We

's a good

| that we got

z and Eric

ember 2007:

oing

ther
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“Let us know how we can help support your

announcement next week."

See the subject line there? "Subject: Android."
This is right around the time in '07 when Android IS being
released for the first time.

So Schwartz from Sun says to Schmidt from Google:

“"Let us know how we can support your

announcement. We're happy to do so." Happy

to do so.

Now, you'll hear other testimony from Schwartz an d
Schmidt. They continued to talk. They continued to discuss
business. But Schwartz never said, "You're wrong . You've
copied. You've done anything wrong.”" None of th at. None of
that.

Now, what happened next? Well, there was more pr aise
for Android in May. Mr. Schwartz gave an intervi ew and then he
made some comments at Java One, which is a big de velopment
conference.

And in June of '08, not even on the timeline, Sun
showed up at a big developer conference and they had built a
Java -- a Sun product on top of Android. They we re trying to
figure out how to build their own products using Android and so
they did that. And then in the fall, Google laun ched the first

Android phone. It was called the G.

And then in '08 HTC released a phone. HTC is one of
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the handset makers. And as you can see there, HT

n '08, in October of '08.

Now what happened next? Enter Oracle. Oracle th

acquires Sun. And you'll hear testimony from Mr.
himself about that today. They acquired Sun and
get in the smart phone business. That was one of

motivations.

One of the first things Mr. Ellison did after he

bought Sun was he appeared at a Java conference i

of '09. All the Java developers were there. All
Java community, and he said: We are flattered by
of Java. We are flattered by Android's use of Ja
his remarks here, and | think we can play them.
Can we play these on the screen, Ben? This is Mr
Ellison.
(Videotape played in open court.)
What he said there was, Sun has opened up Java.
has given Java away, just like he admitted in his
Java language is free -- and we, Oracle, expect t

more of the same.

C released one

en
Ellison
they wanted to

the big

n the summer
the whole
Android's use

va. l've got

Sun
testimony --

0 be doing

Then he went on and made the following comments a bout

Android in particular.
(Videotape played in open court.)
Can we put that up as a slide, Ben?

(Document displayed)
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"We're flattered by Android. We're

flattered. Android is very exciting.

Everyone should be flattered. 1 think we can

see lots of Java devices. Some coming from

our friends at Google."

So this is Oracle now, just like Mr. Schwartz,
publicly endorsing Android, publicly endorsing it

So, again, there wasn't any complaint at this poi
We're back now in April of '09. And Google went
Android. And Samsung then released the Galaxy in
That's another manufacturer of Android products.
I'm sorry. This is November '08. Should be '09.
Motorola releases the Droid.

So we have now got a Google version of this. You
have a Samsung version of this. You have a Motor
this. And these phones are getting out there and
popular and sell like wildfire.

So my next point. Beyond approval is that Google
made a fair use of Java in Android. What does th
Google transformed these APIs into something that
is able to do. No one else was able to build a s
platform using Java, but a lot of people tried.

Now, this next slide was one that Mr. Jacobs put

last night. It's important. This he represented

community. Look at all those companies. The Jav

s use of Java.
nt.
forward with
June of '09.
Motorola --

November '08

ola version of

becoming

at mean?
no one else

mart phone

up
as the Java

a community is
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a big community. There is one really important m
community missing on his slide. Who do you think
be? Google.
Probably the biggest contributor to the Java
community is Google. Google engineers use Java |
pver the place. Not just in Android, but a lot o
places. And they contribute what they do to the
process. So a lot of the code in Java that's out
mproving all the time is being contributed by pe
Google.
So Google knows Java, too, and Google is a part o
this community and | was disappointed to see that
off that slide.

Next point.

ember of that

that would

anguage all

f other

Java community
there and

ople at

we were left

You know that Google transformed Java because the

real experts, Sun, they weren't able to build a s
like this (indicating). All Sun or Oracle were e
was use Java on a feature phone like this (indica
is very, very prevalent. When you see numbers ab
popular Java is on handhelds they are talking abo
phones, not these (indicating). This is what And
(indicating).
So these three examples | have on the board are t

of the examples of efforts at Sun to build a smar

Java. They had a project called Acadia. They di

mart phone
ver able to do
ting). Java
out how

ut feature

roid did

hree
t phone using

dn't work.
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They had a project called One Java. That didn't
had a project called Deneel, actually using some
features. That didn't work.

So Sun was never able to build a smart phone plat
using Java. They were the Java experts.

Next slide.

Enter Mr. Ellison at Oracle. And they wanted to
nto the smart phone market right away, too. The
popular this was.

Slide next.

One of the very first things that Mr. Ellison did
behalf of Oracle was to write to Scott McNealy.
the video. He was the chairman of Sun. He was M
boss at the time. McNealy was the chairman; Schw
CEO.

Mr. Ellison says, Scott, | think the best way, th
best way to increase Java revenue is to build a m
application on top of JavaFx which will make Appl
direct competitor.

So he sees iPhones out there. They are making mo
We can do it too. JavaFx is a Sun Java product.
products that Sun makes with the Java language.
assembled a group of engineers.

Next slide, please.

This was Project Java Phone. Project Java Phone

work. They

of the Android

form

get

y saw how

on
You saw him in
r. Schwartz's

artz was the

obile phone

e's iPhone a

ney.

One of the

And so they

at
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Oracle. They assembled the engineers. They look
everything. They actually looked at building the
top of Android, just like Sun had. No complaint
Nothing. They tried to build it on top of Androi

Next slide.

They weren't able to do it. There were a lot of
problems, but this was one. Problem three:

"Very limited internal expertise to make

smart decisions at Oracle."

So limited expertise. We can't do it.

Now, you're going to hear from Mr. Ellison that t
are experts in Java, too. They use Java all over
products. It's in a lot of Oracle products. But
able to build a smart phone.

So what do they do next?

Let's go back then to the previous slide.

After they failed to build a smart phone on their
own, they look to buy one. They talk about buyin
makes Blackberry. They talked about buying Palm,
Palm Treo. Those didn't work out. They couldn't

way.

Then Mr. Ellison went to Eric Schmidt, the boss a

Google, and said, "We would like to partner with

Android. We think you can do better. You guys s

Sun virtual machine." It was a Sun product based

ed at
ir phone on
about Android.

d.

hey
Oracle

they weren't

g RIM, which
which makes

do it that

you guys on
hould buy our

on the Java
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anguage.
Next slide.
"And put it in Android.” And this is what | aske
Mr. Ellison during his testimony:
"QUESTION: What was the business
proposition?"
This is about his discussion with Mr. Schmidt.
"QUESTION: Did you want Google to replace
its virtual machine with a Java machine; is
that what you said?
"ANSWER: Yeah. Our JVM would boot faster,
run faster" --
"Boot" means start up.
"...run faster, use less power, do all those
things, and we would then have a joint
project with Google where we could save them
money."
That's what he wanted. A joint project with Goog
where he could save them money. That didn't happ
That's too late. Google said no, and that didn't

either.

Now, | want to address one other email that you s

three times, three times during yesterday's openi

by Tim Lindholm that says the alternatives to Jav

need to negotiate a license. Remember that email

d

le
en either.
happen

aw
ng. An emalil

a suck and we

? That email
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was never part of the dialogue back here. That's
to do with the negotiations back in '05 and '06.
wasn't written until July of 2010 after Oracle fa
their own Java Phone, failed to buy a smart phone
partner with Google. They then claimed for the f
Google you're wrong. We want money based on Andr
copied our technology.
They didn't even mention the APIs, there was no
mention of APIs, none. They said, We have all th
and so on and so forth.
So Mr. Lindholm's email was an effort to look and
in 2010 what can we do? Can we change in 20107
Android had been launched. The phone was out. A
manufacturers were using Android; Motorola, HTC.
So, obviously, if you've built your house and pai
the walls and put the roof on and you've moved in
living there, it's awful hard to change the floor
point. But that's what Oracle was demanding. Ch
floor plan after years of our telling you this wa
support Android. Change your floor plan because
piece of the smart phone market. That's what was
So let me have my next slide.
So this is what we expect to prove on behalf of

Google. Sun gave the Java language to the public

are necessary to use the language.

got nothing
That email
iled to build
, failed to
irst time:

oid. You've

ese patents,

see
By 2010
Il the

nted
and you're
plan at that
ange your

s fine and we
we want a

going on.

and the APIs
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Google then built Android using free and open
technologies. They didn't need a license from Su
need a license. They weren't using Sun technolog

Sun publicly approved what they did. Sun knew
everything about what was in Android and said, Yo
Congratulations. We're going to support you.

And Google made a fair use of the APIs by being t
pnly company to be able to take those APIs and pu
smart phone platform that works.

And now as Judge Alsup has told you, we will begi
the evidence in just a few minutes and the eviden
presented over the next couple of weeks. And | h
important request to make; that is, we go second.
first. So | have to ask you to keep an open mind
have our opportunity to present evidence when the
but we won't have an opportunity to do much until

When | come back after all the evidence is in, I
going to ask you to make three findings. I'm goi
three findings.

Finding one: There is no copyright infringement
because the language is free and because the APIs
just to use the language.

Finding two: Sun was aware from day one of what

Google was doing and approved it, endorsed it, an

late now to make a complete about-face and ask th

n. Didn't

y.

u're a rocket.
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t them into a

ce will be

ave a really
Oracle goes
because we'll
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floor plan be changed.

And the third finding that we'll be asking for ba sed
on the evidence is that Android is a fair use of the Java APIs
because it took those APIs and transformed them i nto the only,

ponly smart phone platform working on Java today.

So | thank you very much for your time and attent ion
and | really look forward to presenting evidence on behalf of
Google.

Let me reintroduce one more time our team because you
will be hearing from other attorneys on behalf of Google.

Christa Anderson. And Dan Purcell. Bruce Baber. And Michael
Kwun. We all look forward to representing Google as the case
proceeds.

Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you Mr. Van Nest.

May | ask your team to sort of push back the plac ard
and the file cabinet?

Can you all over there in the jury box go about
another half hour? Is that okay so we can get st arted with the
evidence?

(All jurors respond affirmatively.)

THE COURT: Let me just -- you're all brand new to

this, and | need to repeat things every now and t hen. We will
have the trial in three parts. The first part co ncerns
copyrights. You're not going to hear about paten ts in the
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first part of the case, or at least not very much about
patents.

The second part of the case does involve patents.

And you might say: What is the difference betwee n a copyright
and a patent? And | will explain that in due cou rse, but not
right now. Right now we're dealing with the copy right part.

And then in part three, assuming that you find

iability in part one or part two, then we have a part on
damages and some other related issues. Damages m eaning
compensation that the jury might award based upon infringement,

assuming infringement is found in the first place

Now, after each of these parts -- the part we're in
right now is going to go two to possibly three we eks, something
like that. After each one of these parts you wil | have a -- |
will instruct you on the law. | will give you th e guidelines.
| will give you a verdict form and then you go ba ck into the
jury room and decide that part of the case. And then when
that's decided, we come back out here and go to t he next part.

Think how much farther up to speed you will be wh en
we get to part two because you will now know all of that
background and everything that you've already hea rd. You will
know the name of the lawyers, the companies, the product, the

internal workings and so forth.

So, yes, itis a huge burden on you 12 to sit thr ough

so many weeks of testimony and evidence, and even a greater
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burden to decide those issues, but you can see th atitis -- it
makes sense to do it, for one jury to do all of t hat. So
that's why we have you over there. You are the o nes selected
fo do this.

All right. At this time we will begin the eviden ce
n the case. The way that works is one side call S a witness.
The plaintiff gets to start, and the other side g ets to cross
examine. There are time limits that | don't need to get into,
but | keep track myself and each side will alloca te their time
accordingly.

So at this time on behalf of Oracle, the plaintif f,

you may call your first witness, Mr. Boies.

MR. MR. BOIES: Thank you, your Honor. We call as
our first witness my party admission videotaped d eposition of
Mr. Page. That would be relatively brief and the n our next
witness will be live.

THE COURT: Allright. So let me -- before you play

that, | will explain to the jury what a depositio nis. You're
going to hear this all over the place in this cas e.

Before a trial, each side has the opportunity to do
investigation. And, in fact, it has evolved to t he point that
the rules allow for what are called depositions. And one side
can request -- in fact, require -- someone to sit for a
deposition. It's done under oath with a court re porter, just
like we have here. And these days they often vid eotape these
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depositions so that the -- you can not only hear, but see as
well as get the printed word. It's also allowabl e to just read
to you the deposition, if that's what counsel wis hes to do.

But in this case you want to play it, right?
MR. MR. BOIES: Yes, your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. That's fine.

So this is under oath. It's testimony under oath

And it is it is given -- you should give it just as much weight
as you want to give it, of course. It's up to yo u how much
weight to give it, but it counts just as much as if the

testimony were here live in court.
Now, this deposition is likely to have been just a
few parts, right? How long do you think this wil | be?
MR. MR. BOIES: This part is about 18 or 19 minutes,
your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. So probably the deposition
was a day or maybe longer, but they have reduced down to
selected parts what they would like to present.
And the witness again is who?
MR. MR. BOIES: Mr. Larry Page, the chief executive
officer of Google.
THE COURT: All right. And who was asking the
guestions?
MR. MR. BOIES: | was asking the questions, your

Honor.
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THE COURT: And the date of the deposition was what?

MR. MR. BOIES: Date of the deposition was

August 24th, 2011.

THE COURT: Allright. So you now have -- the stage

s set and what we will do is play this. We'll | ust all sit

here in silence and watch it. This is the first item of

evidence that we will hear in the case.

Please roll the tape.

MR. MR. BOIES: Thank you, your Honor.

WHEREUPON:

LARRY PAGE
called as a witness for the Plaintiff herein, tes tified via
videotaped deposition played in open court in the presence and

hearing of the jury.

(Time noted: 8:50 a.m.)

MR. MR. BOIES:  Your Honor, for the record, this is
Trial Exhibit 1. When they refer to Deposition E xhibit 517,
it's Trial Exhibit 1.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

(Playing of the videotaped deposition was

resumed in open court.)

MR. MR. BOIES: And this is Trial Exhibit 2, your
Honor. The trial exhibit numbers are different f rom the
deposition numbers.

THE COURT: Well, before you -- are there going to be
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more examples of that?

MR. MR. BOIES: There are going to be some additional

examples.

THE COURT: What you might want to do, so you don't
have to stop each time, is just give us the trans lation right
now. The jury will write it down. We all realiz e now that

your numbering is different.
If you don't have that handy... Butif it's
convenient now, we'll do it.

MR. MR. BOIES: |don't have that handy, but we'll do
it for the next deposition.

THE COURT: To explain this to the jury. Atthe
depositions they mark exhibits just like we mark them here in
court and it's not always possible to have them u se the same
numbers as we will here in court.

So they have remarked the exhibits so it will be

easier for you, but one way that makes it harder is that we
have got a mismatch with the depo numbers and you Il just have

to bear with us on that. We will get you the tra nslation as we
go along. So that's what's happening here with t he exhibit
numbers.

Okay. Please continue on.
(Playing of the videotaped deposition was

resumed in open court.)

MR. BOIES: And this is Trial Exhibit 7, Your Honor.
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Exhibit 490 at deposition. Trial Exhibit 7.
(Video resumes.)
MR. BOIES: Your Honor, plaintiff's deposition
Exhibit 496 is Trial Exhibit 401.
(Video resumes.)
THE COURT: Thank you.
(Video concluded.)
MR. BOIES: Your Honor, that completes the portion of
the deposition.
THE COURT: Okay. And can we go a few more minutes
over there? Everyone seems to indicate yes.
Next witness.
MR. BOIES: Your Honor, the next witness we call is
Mr. Larry Ellison.
THE COURT: All right. We will do this. We will go
about 15 minutes.
Can you go 15 minutes over there?
(Jurors respond affirmatively.)
THE COURT: We'll get started on the next witness,
and then we'll take a break at approximately 9:30
All right. The next witness will come in.
Welcome. Please come up to the witness stand,

Mr. Ellison, and raise your right hand.
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LARRY ELLISON,

called as a witness for the Plaintiff herein, hav ing been first
duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows
THE WITNESS: | do.
THE COURT: Allright. Thank you. Welcome. Please
have a seat.
And you see how close you've got to get? It will
move all around at your convenience. It will als 0 move back so
you don't have to lean forward.
THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Why don't you say your name to make sure
it's coming through.
THE WITNESS: My name is Larry Ellison.
THE COURT: Perfect.
Go ahead, counsel.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. BOIES:
Q. Good morning, Mr. Ellison.
A. Good morning.
Q. Let me begin, just very briefly, by asking you to t ell the
jury a little bit about yourself.
Where were you born?
| was born in New York City.

And where did you go to school?

A. Let's see. In grammar school -- | went to school i n
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Chicago. | went to the Eugene Field Grammar Scho

Shore High School. They are public schools in Ch

Q. Where did you go to college?

A. Went to the University of lllinois and the Universi
Chicago.

Q. And did you do any graduate work?

A. | did not.

Q. You founded Oracle, correct?

A. In 1977.

Q. And when you founded Oracle, how many people were p

the company?

A. There were four of us.

Q. And what was your role?

A. | was the CEO and the head of engineering.

Q. And what is your role at the company today?

A. I'm the CEO and head of engineering.

Q. No promotions?

A. Not in 30 years.

Q. And how -- how many employees does Oracle have toda
A. Over 100,000.

Q. Could you briefly describe what Oracle's business i
A. Oracle is in the business of designing, building, a

selling computer hardware and software.

Q. Now, in connection, | want to focus particularly on

software part of the business. With respecttot
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part of the business, is intellectual property im
A. What we do is create intellectual property. We cre

hardware designs and we create, in this case, sof

And we, again, design computer software, they are

computer programs. So we design computer program
we build those computer programs. Both the desig
program and the program itself are both intellect
Q. Now, we're going to talk in this trial both about p
and copyrights, but I just want to focus on copyr
nNow.

Does Oracle use copyrights to protect its
intellectual property?
A. We use copyrights to protect both our software desi
the programs -- and the computer programs themsel
Q. Is it expensive to design software programs and dev
software programs?
A. Oracle spends about $5 billion a year on research a
development. 90 percent of that is spent on crea
designing and programming and creating computer s
Q. And would it be possible to make that kind of inves
if you did not have copyright protection for the
property, the software that you created?
A. Well, no. If people could copy our software, in ot

words create cheap knock offs of our products, we

paid for our engineering and we wouldn't be able

portant?
ate

tware designs.

s. And then
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nvest at the rate we invest.

Q. Let me focus on Java very broadly. And could you e
what Java consists of.

A. Okay. There are two parts to Java. You create --
write computer programs. And you write them, and

computer programs.

So there's the Java development environment that

use to write a computer program, and then there's
runtime environment that you use to run the Java

Q. Let me focus on writing the computer program.

There has been already some mention in the trial

something called the Java programming language, s
called API, something called the Java virtual mac
A. Right.
Q. Could you explain what those terms refer to?
A. The Java -- when you program in Java, when you writ
program in Java, you do two very different things
use the Java programming language; and, two, you
library of prewritten programs.
And, if you like, I can give you examples of both
those things.
Q. Please.
A. All right. So the Java programming language, an ex

would be if commission is greater than zero, sala

commission equals pay. That's an example of a Ja

xplain

you

you run

you
the Java

program.

of
omething

hine.

ea
. One, you

getto reuse a

of

ample

ry plus

va program.
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The Java compiler, if you will, understands "if,"
understands "greater than" and it understands "pl
commission, greater than zero, salary plus commis
pay.
The Java -- the prewritten Java program -- so tha
pne of the things you do, you write in this Java
anguage.
Q. Let me stop you just for a second there because you
the word "compiler.” Could you explain what a co
A. The compiler takes the Java programming language an
converts it into a form that the computer can und
quickly. So it converts it into something called
bytecode.

So when you run the Java program -- that's the ot
part, you -- we're talking about writing the prog
run the Java program, before you run it you put i
compiler. Compiles the Java program.

And then the Java program runs -- when you're
actually running it, it runs on the Java virtual
the Java runtime environment.
Q. Now, you had given us just an example of the Java
programming language, and you said you were going
us an example of a prewritten Java program.

A. Okay. Again, Java programmers do two things. One,

write in the Java language. And then they do som

us." If

sion equals
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that's quite different. They get to reuse these
Java programs. Let me give you an example of a p
program.
We could have a prewritten program to manage list
names and addresses. And that program really has
It's APIs and the rest of the program. And I'll
of those.
The APIs are a command structure you give to the
program. For example, in a program that manages
write a program that manages lists of names and a
command structure or the APIs would be: create ne
name and address to list, delete name and address
sort list.
So these prewritten program -- so what the progra
does, the program has two parts. The program has
portion of the program that understands these com

list, sort list.

The API portion of the program decodes these comm

to figure out what to do, like sort list. And th
obeys the command. It actually goes out and sort
names and addresses.
So we have a very large library of these prewritt
programs that Java programmers can use as buildin

they are creating their own Java programs.

So, back to what does a Java programmer do? The

prewritten

rewritten Java

s of
two parts.

explain both

-- when you
ddresses, the
w list, add
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programmer writes in the Java language, and then the Java
programmer gets to reuse these building blocks, t hese programs,
and include them and build a still larger program
Q. When you refer to "these building blocks," these
prewritten programs, what are you referring to?
A. That's, again, this library of programs that you ac cess
through APIs.
Again, the Java -- the Java program environment
ncludes these two parts: The Java language and this library
of prewritten programs.
And those prewritten programs, again, are -- the
command structure of those prewritten programs ar e these APIs.

So when you program in Java, you write language

statements, and you use the APIs to these prewrit ten programs.
Q. Now, is it necessary to use the Java APIs that Sun has
created in order to use the Java programming lang uage?

A. Absolutely not.
MR. VAN NEST: Objection, Your Honor. Calls for
expert testimony.
THE COURT: Do you know the answer to the question?
THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: From personal knowledge?
THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Overruled. Please answer.

THE WITNESS: There's a company in the UK that built
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ts own Java environment. And they used the Java
anguage, but they created their own set of APIs,

programs. And that other environment is called S

doesn't use the Sun-created APIs. They have thei

APIs and their own set of prewritten programs.

that are just programming languages and don't hav
prewritten library or programs for reuse.

BY MR. BOIES:

Q. Now, is it difficult/expensive to create APIS?

A. Uhm, arguably, it's one of the most difficult thing
at Oracle. When you design a program, the very f

do is create or define the APIs of the program.

that's done by our most senior experienced and ta
software engineers.

Q. Does Sun, and now Oracle, offer licenses to people
want to use the APIs for Java that Sun has create

has now created?

A. We do have a variety of licenses for Java.

Q. Can you explain what those types of licenses are?
A. Yeah. There are three kinds of licenses. There's
open source license. There's a specification lic

then there's a commercial license.

Q. | want to go through each of those licenses and tal

So Spring uses the Java programming language, but
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what their nature and character is.

First, let me begin with what you referred to as
GPL license. Is that correct?

Yes.

You said that was an open source license?

Yes.

o » O »

Can you explain what that means.
A. Well, all of the Java code is published. Soit's o
t's openly published so people can look at it.
notion of open source. Anyone can read the sourc

But just because something is open source doesn't
mean you can do whatever you want to do with it.
source code is governed by a license agreement ca
what GPL says is you are free to take this code,
programs, and do whatever you want, so long as an
additions you make to that code you also publish
openly under that same GPL license.
Q. Let me see if | understand what you're saying. If
somebody accepts a Java GPL license, they get the
for free. But, in return, they have to make free
wants to use what they create whatever it is they
A. They -- the answer is yes, but they get more than j
source code. They not only get the source code,

a license to the Java patents and a license to th

copyrights, so long as they adhere to the rules o

the

pen --
And that's the

e code.

The open

lled GPL. And
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y changes or
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ppen source license.
Q. Now, was a Java GPL open source license available t
Google?
A. Absolutely.
Q. Now, you said a second type of license was a Java
specification license. Do you recall that?
A. Yes.
Q. And would you explain what the nature of a Java
specification license is.
A. Of course.

The Java specification license lets you look at a
of the source code -- excuse me. Excuse me. Let
The Java specification license -- that is incorre
said. It doesn't let you look at the source code
up.

The Java specification license lets you look at t
Java documentation. Not the source code. All of
documentation, something that's in English. It's
on a sheet of paper. Let's look at all of those
specifications, those design specifications.

And, then, using those design specifications you
build your own version of Java. So you can use o
use the designs and all the specs. You cannot lo

code. Very specifically, you are not allowed to

code. And then using those specifications, you ¢

me be clear.
ct, what |

. Let me back

he
the Java

printed out

can
ur -- you can

ok at the

look at the
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your own version of Java.
Once you have built that version of Java, you mus
run a -- what's called a compatibility test, to m
tis Java, to make sure -- because we want every
of Java -- IBM, by the way, did this. IBM has it
of Java. Oracle has a version of Java. SAP has
Java.
There are lots of companies that have built their
versions of the Java environment; both the enviro
writing programs and the environment for running
Lots of people have done this, and they got a
specification license. But they must -- part of
specification license requires them to run this c
test called the TCK. | think it's Test Compatibi
They have to run this TCK. And Oracle -- before,
charges for this compatibility test.
You can build your own version of Java using the
specifications, but you must pass the compatibili
you do pass the compatibility test, you then are
license for Java copyrights and Java patents. Bu
you pass the compatibility test.
Q. Is the Java specification license itself free?
A. The Java specification license itself is free. Wha

charge for is the TCK, the compatibility test kit

Q. In order to use a Java specification license, you m

ake sure that
one's version
S OwWn version

a version of

own
nment for

programs.
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ompatibility
lity Kit.
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a TCK; is that correct?
A.
Q.

compatibility?

Yes.

And you said that the TCK was designed to ensure
A. To ensure all Javas are Java. You know, that -- th
there aren't multiple dialects of Java.

Q.
A.

Can you explain why that's important to Oracle.
The history of Java is kind of interesting.

It used to be when you wrote a program for a
Microsoft Windows computer, that program would no
Maclintosh, an Apple Macintosh computer. So if yo
something that ran on Windows and something that
Mac, you would have to write that program twice.
Windows, and then for the Apple Mac.

The big idea behind Java was write once, run
anywhere. So we wanted to be able to write a pro
that program would run on Windows, and run on Mac
run on other computers. The whole notion of writ
anywhere.

Fundamental to that notion of write once, run
anywhere is, Java is Java. That perhaps Apple wo
created the runtime environment for Maclntosh, an
or, say, Sun could have created the runtime for W

the programmer would only have to write the progr

because of compatibility, the program would run o

at

trunona
u wanted
ran on Apple

First for

gram once, and
Intosh, and

€ once, run
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run on Mac.

That was the big value proposition behind Java, w
pnce, run anywhere, which only can occur if there 'S
compatibility.

THE COURT: Would this be a good breaking point,
Mr. Boies?

MR. BOIES: It would, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Over there in the jury box, we'll take a

15-minute break. Remember all the admonitions. No talking

about the case.
THE CLERK: Allrise.
(Jury out at 9:31 a.m.)
THE COURT: Allright. Please, be seated. Very
briefly, and we'll then take our break.
| have a couple of items. One is the exhibits in
the -- that were called out in the deposition tha tyou
showed --
MR. BOIES: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- | haven't allowed anything in evidence

yet. I'm sure they're fine. Are they stipulated in? What is
the story there? If they all were party admissio ns, they'll

sail right in. But | need to keep track, one by one, what's in
evidence.

MR. BOIES: We have not offered them yet, Your Honor.

| would like to offer them.

rite
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THE COURT: All right. All of those are received

because they were all party admissions. Any obje ction?

(Trial Exhibits 7 and 401 received in evidence.)
MR. VAN NEST: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. But what | need is the real

trial exhibit number. So when we come back, some time before
the end of today, please give me those numbers so | can keep
track of what's in. | do it myself, as well as D awn. So |

need to run an orderly thing.

Here's the other suggestion | have. Are we going to
have more exhibits where you lawyers did not foll ow my
guidelines?

You're supposed to use the same deposition number SO
you won't have this problem. You understand that . Butyou
didn'tdo it. Okay. We'll live with it. But wh at we now need
is a translation kit. And | have a sheet of pape r that does
the translation so the jury can -- it will help t hem follow the
evidence.

MR. BOIES: Your Honor, we started that now.

THE COURT: So for each witness it ought to say page
deposition, the ones that were, you know, A means K. L means

Z. So you need to do that in due course.

And we'll backdate -- not backdate, but retroacti vely
back it up to the start of trial so the jury can have that in
case they took notes. All right. But you're bus y right now.
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You don't have to do that at this moment. We'll take 15
minutes. Thank you.
MR. BOIES: Thank you, Your Honor.
(Recess taken from 9:33 to 9:52 a.m.)
THE COURT: Be seated. Let's go back to work.
Just so everyone will know, the rule against talk ing
to the witness only applies on cross-examination. So we aren't
there yet.

Please, bring in the jury.

(Jury enters at 9:52 a.m.)

THE COURT: All right. Be seated, please.

Mr. Boies, please continue.

MR. BOIES: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. BOIES:
Q. Mr. Ellison, before the break you were talking abou t the
importance of compatibility for Java. Do you rec all that
generally?
A. | do.
Q. Now, the jury has heard and will hear terms about
fragmenting Java and forking Java. And could you explain what
those terms mean.
A. It means creating incompatibility versions of Java and --
that creates two problems.

One, it fragments the developer community because

they have to, if you will, learn how to program i n industry
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standard Java and then this incompatible version
you would have to learn how to program two slight
know, somewhat different ways. So it fragments t
community.
Second, it ends the notion of write once, run
anywhere. No longer can a programmer write a pro
expect it to run on all the different computers t
Java runtime environment.

So it fragments the developer community and it br
the write once, run anywhere promise.
Q. Now, you mentioned earlier that IBM had its own ver
the Java; Oracle has got its own version of Java;
big software company, has its own version of Java
different versions of Java all compatible?
A. They are all compatible. The ones that you mention
IBM, SAP, Oracle, Red Hat, Sun -- we can go on an
are all compatible.
Q. And | think you said the Java specification license
required that a person taking that license, in or
copyrights and the other intellectual property th
had to agree to create a compatible version of Ja
correct?
A. Right. They got a specification license. They cre

their compatible version of Java, and they proved

compatible by running the compatibility test.

of Java. So
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Q.
A.
Q.
the GPL license and the specification license. D
A.
Q.
A.

tself.

Q.

specification license was free, but you had to th

A.
Q.
A.
Q.
commercial licenses?
A.

Kindle.

Was a specification license available to Google?
Yes.

You said there was a third kind of license, in addi

Yes. There's a commercial license.
And can you explain what a commercial license is.

A commercial license lets you use the actual -- Ora

code. It lets you use our Java environment, the

And you said that a GPL license was free. You said

Is a commercial license free?

No. We charge for a commercial license.
And do companies take commercial licenses?
Yes, they do.

Can you give me some examples of companies that hav

RIM, that makes the Blackberry. Amazon that makes

There are -- there are lots and lots of examples

companies that take commercial licenses. Nokia,
company, takes a commercial license. LG and Sams
commercial licenses. There are lots and lots of
companies that take commercial licenses.

Q.

Was a commercial license available to Google?

tion to
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cle's

actual code
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A. Yes.
Q. Are you aware of any company today that is using Ja
created by Oracle or Sun that has not taken one o
icenses?
A. The only company | know that hasn't taken any of th
icenses is Google.
Q. Let me go to another subject the jury will hear abo
that is something called a clean room.

Are you familiar with what that means in the cont
of the software industry? Not in the case of cle
services.
A. Yes.
Q. What is -- what is a clean room?
A. Well, if you take a Java specification license and
write your own version of Java, you have to do it
room.

What that means is, you're not allowed to look at
Oracle version of Java, the source code. You're
look at our computer programs when you build your
That's called a clean room.

In other words, it's cleaned of our intellectual
property. The source code itself is not availabl
study, look at, copy, learn from, anything. You

look at that. Or you can't have people who have

that. You have to have -- they have to -- it has

va APlIs

f these three
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will, independent. They have to do the work inde

what's included in our source code.

Q. And is the concept of a clean room something that i
understood in the industry?

A. Yes. Everyone who takes a specification license
understands that they have to build their version

clean room.

Q. There is a term called the "JCP," | think it is, Ja
Community Process?

A. Yes.

Q. And can you explain what that is.

A. Okay. Oracle doesn't develop Java by itself. Java
developed by a community that makes contributions
contributions, to Java.

So it's not just Sun and Oracle. IBM makes
contributions to Java. A company called Red Hat
contributions to Java. SAP makes contributions t
are lots of individual programmers who make contr
Java.

It's the notion of this open source community, th
community of programmers and companies and indivi
a group, make contributions and develop Java. It
group. It's a big group. So what they do is, th
executive committee that kind of governs and deci

of Java.
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Q. Can you give me some examples of companies that are
Java executive committee.
A. IBM -- Oracle, IBM, SAP, HP, Red Hat. All of whom
competitors, by the way. We compete, but we stil
around Java. And Google is also on the executive
Java.
Q. And from time to time are new versions of Java crea
through this community process?
A. Yeah. The people ask for improvements for Java, so
basically -- they'll come up and they'll say, we'
this feature to Java, we'd like to add that featu

And these recommendations then go before the
executive committee. The executive committee vot
Eventually, we have a collection of improvements,
up with a new version of Java.

And Java 7, recently the executive committee vote
and approved Java 7.
Q And is Java 7 a new version of Java?
A Java 7 is the new version of Java.
Q. And when was that approved by the executive committ
A Several months ago.
Q And when this Java 7 was up for approval, did all o
members of the executive committee have an opport
A. Yes. Everyone -- everyone on the executive committ

an opportunity to vote.
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Q. And did anybody vote against this new version?

A. Everyone voted for it except for one company. The
company that voted against Java 7 was Google.

Q. With respect to the APIs that you've mentioned earl
using the APIs that Sun and Oracle created an adv
company that wants to program in the Java program

A. We -- we think these -- this library of prewritten
programs -- and they use those prewritten program
their APIs.

We think this library of prewritten programs, it'
good library of programs. We think it makes prog

more productive if they use the library, they use

Q. You mentioned there was this company, | think you s
Spring, who had written their own APIS?

A. Yes.

Q. Does it take a period of time and expense and resou
you're going to go that route?

A. Yeah. Spring had to design their own APIs, and the
had to teach the developer community about these
they had to persuade them that their collection o
library of programs, was in some ways better than

of programs that Oracle and Sun had produced.

Q. And there came a time when you became aware that Go

was using Java APIs that Sun had copyrighted and

owned the copyrights to; is that correct?

only
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A. That's correct.

Q. And did you take any action to try to address that?

A. I met with Eric Schmidt when he was CEO of Google, and |
met with Larry Page, the current CEO of Google. And | tried to
persuade them to build -- to be compatible with t he industry

standard version of Java.

Q. And did they agree to do that?

A. No.

MR. BOIES: Your Honor, we have no more questions at
this time.

THE COURT: Before we -- thank you.

Before we go to the cross, someone out there has a
very loud and noisy keypad. Who is that? I'm go ing to ask you
to stop typing because it is distracting. And if you don't,

the marshals will remove you.
| said before, when the lawyer has the floor ther e

will be no distractions. And | mean that.

This is an important case to these parties, and t he
jury is going to hear every word without a bunch of tick, tick,
tick, tick.

| don't know who it was, but | know the direction it

was coming from. | don't think it was your table :
Mr. Van Nest. I'm not accusing you. It's somebo dy out there

in the public seating.

I'm sorry to be so strong about this, but this is

Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR.
Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR.
Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA Document943 Filed04/18/12 Page83 of 20306

mportant to the parties in this case. | want ev ery word of
the witness's testimony to be heard and every wor d of the
cross-examination and what Mr. Boies was saying t o be heard.

Where is my marshal, my court security officer?

Okay. If you hear any loud -- loud typing by one of these
reporters or anyone else, tell them to stop. If they don't
stop, remove them from the courtroom. All right.

CSO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Mr. Van Nest, the floor is yours.

MR. VAN NEST: Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Good morning, Mr. Ellison.
A. Good morning.
Q. The Java programming language, you understand that nobody
owns that, right?
A. Uhm, we're making no claims to the Java programming
language itself.

THE COURT: Mr. Ellison, you can say yes or no.
That's a yes or no question. Come on.

THE WITNESS: Could you repeat the question?
BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q. Yes, sir.

You understand nobody owns the Java programming
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anguage, right?
A. I'm not -- I'm not sure.
Q. Anybody can use the Java programming language witho ut any
royalty at all, right?
A. Again, I'm not sure.
MR. VAN NEST: Your Honor, at this time | would like
to play as a party admission from Mr. Ellison's d eposition, at
page 47, lines 5 through 10.
THE COURT: Proceed. Proceed.
(Videotaped deposition was played in open court, and
was not reported by the court reporter.)
MR. VAN NEST: We need to replay that. The sound was
off.
THE COURT: We'll replay it as soon as we get hooked
up online.
(Videotaped deposition was played in open court, and
was not reported by the court reporter.)
BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Now, in this case the Java programming language was
originally built by Sun, not by Oracle, right?

A. That's right.

Q. It's been around a long time?
A. Yes.
Q. And it was Sun that created the copyrights that are at

issue in this case, not Oracle, right?
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A. | believe so.
Q. The APIs that are at issue, those were created by S
Oracle?

A. Yes.

ibraries during your testimony. Did | get that

A. | distinguished between the API designs and then th
ibrary of programs that implement the APIs.

Q. So the library of programs, that has in it the sour
that actually tells the computer what to do when

comes to that point, right?

A. That's correct.

Q. And that source code is source code that Sun create
the case of these libraries and put in its Java |

right?

A. That's correct.

Q. The APIs, those are a command structure, | think yo
that instructs the computer what code to run, rig

A. No. The APIs -- there's an API design, and then th
the actual code that implements the APIs that are

program.

Q. Didn't you testify on direct examination, Mr. Ellis
that the API is a command structure that allows t

be accessed?

A. | was using the expression "command" in layman's te

Q. Now, you distinguished between the APIs and the API

un, not

right?

ce code

the program

din
ibraries,

u said,
ht?
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a part of the
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frying to explain in general what -- what a progr
Q. So command structure in layman's terms that's the w

which you get access to the source code libraries

A. It's the way you ask the program to do something.
Q. It's different from the source code in the library
right?

A. No. The program under -- repeat the question. I'm

sure | understood the question.

Q. The command structure is different than the source
that's in the libraries?

A. No. The command structure is implemented in the so
code. So the command structure is a part of the

The program has to understand the command first,
understands the API, the direction like sort list

has to know how to sort the list.

Q. Now, | take it that you did not participate in the
discussions between Google and Sun that occurred
2005-2006 time frame; is that right?

A. That's right.

Q. That was done by folks at Sun, including Mr. Schwar
was the CEO?

A. | believe so.

Q. Okay. And to the extent licensing was discussed in
2005-2006 time frame, you weren't around for any

A. Correct.

am does.
ay in
, right?
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Q. And do you actually know when the GPL license you t

about came into existence?

A. What year GPL came into existence?
Q. Yes.
A. | don't know what year GPL came into existence.

Q. You don't know whether it was even in existence in

and 2006, when Google and Sun were having discuss

Mr. Ellison?

A. | just testified, | don't know what year the GPL ca
existence.

Q. Now, as far as you know, Google has never branded i

smart phone platform as Java,; it's always been ca

A. Correct.

Q. So Google is not promoting its smart phone platform
the name Java. It uses a different name, Android

A. Correct.

Q. And do you know what, if any, position the senior
management at Sun took about that back in 2006, 2

before you acquired Sun?

| don't.

Was Mr. Schwartz running Sun during that period of
He was.

He was the chief executive officer?

Correct.

o >» 0 » O »

Responsible for all decision-making?

alked

2005

ions. Do you,

me into
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lled Android?
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Yes.

Setting corporate policy?

> 0 »

Yes.
Q. Ultimately, responsible for any negotiations with

companies like Google and anyone else, right?

A. Yes.

Q. You would say that if the CEO says it, his word goe s?

A. Well, no.

Q. Now, you mentioned discussions that you'd had with

Mr. Schmidt and Mr. Page. Those occurred in earl y 2010, right?
A. Yes.

Q Do you recall approximately when that took place?

A. My most recent discussion with Larry Page was a wee k ago.
Q Let's -- let's go back to Mr. Schmidt. That occurr ed --

MR. VAN NEST: Actually, may | put my timeline up,
Your Honor?

THE COURT: Is this your timeline or the one we gave
to the jury?

MR. VAN NEST: Well, it's my timeline, but | can put
either one up.

THE COURT: I think it's better to use the one we
gave to the jury.

MR. VAN NEST: Okay.

THE COURT: Yours is an argument piece, and that's

fine, but it would be better for consistency to u se the one we
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gave the jury.
MR. VAN NEST: That's fine. We'll do that.

BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q. So do you know, in fact, Mr. Ellison, that Android
released originally back in 200772 Is that someth

A. Approximately. | didn't know if it was 2007 or ear
2008.

Q. And in 2008, the first Android phone came out --

A. That's what -- that's what was in my head, was 2008
the first Android phone.

Q. And then you entered into an agreement -- it's not
timeline, but you entered into an agreement to ac

about April of 2009, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And you then met with Mr. -- the deal closed someti
early 20107

A. Yes.

Q. And your meeting with Mr. Schmidt was in approximat

March of 20107

A. Yes.

Q. Now, by that point in time had you already appeared
JavaOne and said you were flattered by Android's

A. Yeah, | said | was very excited that there was a Ja

phone on the marketplace, yes.

Q. And you said that you expected more Java-based prod

was

ing you know?

ly

was

on this

quire Sun in

me in

ely

at
use of Java?

va

ucts
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from your friends at Google, right?

A. | don't recall saying that, but ...

Q. Do you recall making the statement that you were fl attered
by Android?

A. That | was flattered that there was a Java phone on the
market, yes.

Q. And that Java phone you're talking about was Androi d--

A. Yes.

Q. -- right? You said it was exciting?

A. Yes.

Q. It was a Java phone, right?

A. Yes, yes.

Q. And you expected to see more Java devices coming fr om your

friends at Google, correct?

A. I mean, I'll take -- 1 don't recall that part, but okay.
Q. Do you remember actually going up on stage with
Mr. McNealy, prior to this meeting with Mr. Schmi dt, and making

these comments in public?

A. | do.
Q. Do you remember your remarks that day?
A. Yes.
MR. VAN NEST: What I'd like to do, Your Honor, is
play an excerpt of Mr. Ellison's remarks, and ask him to

identify them and authenticate them.

THE COURT: All right. I will let you do this.
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MR. BOIES: No, Your Honor.

MR. VAN NEST: TX 2939.

THE COURT: 2939.

Over there in the jury box, please, | know your h
is sinking when you hear there are 3,000 exhibits
through that many.

The lawyers will -- are excellent. They will win
this down to probably a couple hundred exhibits.
numbered a lot more than that.

2939 received in evidence. You may play it for t
jury and the witness.

(Trial Exhibit 2939 received in evidence.)

(Video recording played in open court.)

BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q. Mr. Ellison, is that you on the video?
A. Yes, itis.
Q. Now, were your remarks that day recorded and filed

the government?

A. | have no idea.

| et's do this the technically right way. What is
number?

MR. VAN NEST: It's TX 2939.

THE COURT: Any objection to that being received in
evidence?

THE COURT: Give me the exhibit number again.

the Exhibit

eart

. We won't go

now

But they have

he

with
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MR. VAN NEST: Your Honor, may | approach the
witness?
THE COURT: Yes. What are you showing him? What
exhibit number is that?
MR. VAN NEST: 2041, Your Honor.
THE COURT: 2041.
BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Mr. Ellison, would you turn to the -- it's about th e sixth
page in to 2041. At the top there's a quote from Mr. McNealy:
"Great. With transition there's always
nervousness."
A. What page did you say this was on?
Q. Unfortunately, the pages aren't numbered. The Bate S
number at the bottom is 1732.
A. Okay. Give me a second. | gotit. Okay.
Q. All right. Do you see the remarks there that are
attributed to you in the middle of the page?
A. | do.
Q. And do those appear to be the remarks that we just heard

about on the video?

A. Can | have a second to look?
Q. Sure.

A. They are.

Q. All right.

A. They are the same remarks.
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Q.

A.

> 0 » O

Honor.

Q.
that yo

A.

Q.

Is it often the case that sometimes when you make p ublic

statements, because of the securities rules those statements

have to be filed with the government?

Yes.

That happens from time to time?

It does.

Does this appear to be one of those occasions?
Itis.

MR. VAN NEST: | would offer 2041 in evidence, Your

MR. BOIES: No objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Received in evidence.
(Trial Exhibit 2041 received in evidence.)

MR. VAN NEST: Could we put up on the screen, |

believe it's about page 7, please.

(Document displayed.)

BY MR. VAN NEST:

And there in the middle of the page, are those the remarks
u made at JavaOne in 2008 -- excuse me, 20 09?

They are.

And you said:

"James, Sun, has done a fantastic job opening
Java, opening up Java, giving Java to the
world. And we're going to do more of the

same."
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Do you see those remarks?

A. Yes.
Those are remarks you made that day?
A. Yes.
MR. VAN NEST: Could we go to the top -- to the

bottom of the page, please. Highlight that.
BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Now, this is what | asked you about earlier.

Was this a reference to being flattered by the fa
that Android was using Java?
A. Yes.
Q. You're talking about an Android phone being shaken.
meant out in the audience?
Correct.
And you indicated you were very excited by Android?
Yes.
And you liked the fact that it used Java?
Yes.
And that you expected Google to do more?

Yes.

o >» O » O » O »

And to expand its use of Java in Android into netbo
other products, right?
A. Yes.

Q. And that was made at a developer conference with th

of people in the audience?

ct

You

oks and

ousands
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A. Yes.

Q. The press were there --

A. Yes.

Q. -- right? Other companies were there?

A. Yes, definitely.

Q. Java developers were there?

A. Lots of them.

Q. Now, when you met with Mr. Schmidt, that was severa I
months after JavaOne in 2009. It was in 2010, co rrect?

A. Yes.

Q. And, in the meantime, hadn't you made an effort at Oracle

to build your own Java phone?

A. No.
Q. Hadn't you told Mr. McNealy, as soon as Oracle had agreed
to acquire Sun, that the best way to increase Jav a revenue

would be to build a Java phone?

A. It was an idea that perhaps a good way or the best way
would be to build a Java phone. | had the idea f or building a
Java phone. And we explored that idea, decided i t would be a
bad idea.

Q. And then that idea was one that you expressed very soon
after you agreed to acquire Sun, right to the top , to

Mr. McNealy himself, right?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you send him an e-mail?
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A. Yes, | did.

Q. Let me back up a minute. When you acquired Sun, wa sn't
pne of the key motivating factors to get into the smart phone
market?

A. No.

Q. Was one of the factors driving your interest in Sun the

chance to expand Java into smart phones?
A. No.
MR. VAN NEST: Your Honor, | would like to play as a
party admission from Mr. Ellison's depo at page 1 5, line 20
through page 16, line 01.
THE COURT: All right. Please do so.
(Videotaped deposition was played in open court, and
was not reported by the court reporter.)
THE WITNESS: | believe you said one of the primary
factors. | believe that was your wording.
BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q. So it was a factor?

A. Yes.

Q. And it was a factor that you thought was a good ide a?

A. | thought it was an idea worth exploring, and we ex plored
it. But it was not one of the primary motives fo r buying Sun,

which is what you said.

Q. | take it you were hoping to compete not only with Apple

but with Google, too, right?
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and compete with everybody in the smart phone bus

Q. So that included Apple?

A. Yes.

Q. And it included Google?

A. Yes.

Q. And that's because, at that time, the primary use o
n phones was in these feature phones that I'm ho

hand, right?

A. Primary use? Java, at that time, was certainly use

lot of feature phones, yes. The biggest use of J
sorry, was in server computers.
Q. Sure. Big computers and --

A. And that's why we bought Sun --

acquired the company, was in phones like this fea

A. Correct.

Q. -- right?
smart phones and compete with Apple and Google, r
A. | wanted to explore it. We explored it, and it tur

to be a bad idea.

Mr. McNealy at Sun was to explore this idea, corr

A. Yes.

A. | had an idea that we could enter the smart phone b

Q. But in the mobile phone the main use, at the time y

And your idea was, could we expand the use of Jav

Q. Now, you -- one of the very first suggestions you m

usiness
iness, yes.

f Java
Iding in my

dina
ava, I'm

ou
ture phone --

ain

ight?

ned out

ade to
ect?

Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR.

Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR,

Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Case3:10-cv-RRq0NH ArERHDENE R e A (18L& 1P aged8 of 20321

Q.

A.

Q.

> o0 » 0 » 0 »

Honor.

Q.

I'd like to hand you Exhibit 2042. Could you ident ify

that, Mr. Ellison?

Give me a second to read it. It's an e-mail -- oka Y,

yeah, I've read it.

It's an e-mail that you wrote to Mr. McNealy?
Correct.

Mr. McNealy was the chairman of the board of Sun?
Yes.

Was he a friend of yours?

Yes.

You guys go back several years?

Yes.

MR. VAN NEST: And I'd offer 2042 in evidence, Your

MR. BOIES: No objection.

THE COURT: Thank you. Received.

(Trial Exhibit received in evidence.)

MR. VAN NEST: Could we put it on the screen, please.
THE COURT: Publish to the jury.

(Document displayed.)

BY MR. VAN NEST:

Let's focus on the very first sentence.
"Scott, | think the best way to increase Java
revenue is to build a mobile phone

application suite on top of JavaFX, which
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will make Apple's iPhone a direct competitor
of ours."
Is that the sentence you wrote?
A. Yes, itis.
Q. This is in May of 2009, so about a month after you agreed
to acquire Sun?
A. That's right.
Q. So early on in your period you didn't even formally own
Sun yet but you agreed to acquire the company --
A. Correct.
Q. -- right?

And your idea was you would then license the Java

phone software to people like Verizon and charge money for it,
right?

A. Yeah. The idea was, you know, we were exploring bu ilding
the smart phone using JavaFX, and then we would ¢ harge carriers

like Verizon for it, yes.
Q. Right. So this was not going to be open source. Y ou were
going to charge the carriers for this product?

A. No. Open source and charging have nothing to do wi th one
another. It was going to be open sourced.

Q. But your idea was charge the carriers; that's how y ou
would make money?

A. Yeah. As opposed to charge for advertising, yes.

Q. Now, didn't you learn early on in this period that Sun had
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tried and failed to build its own smart phone?

A. I'm not sure how -- how much Sun tried. | know the
the idea.

Yes, | think James Gosling wrote me an e-mail say
that Sun had tried, and was unable to build a sma

don't know if he actually even started the projec

| know they -- again, it was an idea they explore
and they didn't pursue it. My understanding is t

really pursue it.

Q. And James Gosling, he's the father of Java, right?
Yes, he is.

He was one of the senior engineers at Sun?

Correct.

o » O »

And he told you right away, right after you acquire
company, hey, we tried it and it never happened,
A. Well, no. Let me be clear. | think what he said w
had the same idea. We explored the same idea and
through with it.
Q. All right. Let me --
MR. VAN NEST: May | approach the witness, Your
Honor?
THE COURT: Yes.
BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q. | have Exhibit 2043, Mr. Ellison. Would you take a

at that, please.

y had

ing
rt phone. |

t.

hey didn't

d the
right?
as, We

we didn't go

look
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Is that an e-mail that you received from Mr. Gosl
n May of 2009?
A. Yes.
MR. VAN NEST: I'd offer 2043 in evidence, Your
Honor.
MR. BOIES: No objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you. Received.
(Trial Exhibit 2043 received in evidence.)
(Document displayed.)
BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. This is an e-mail that was part of the same e-malil
with Mr. McNealy, that we just looked at, right?
A. Yes.
Q. And James Gosling wrote you and Mr. McNealy on May
MR. VAN NEST: Could we pan down to the bottom of the
page, please, Ben. So right there.
BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. (As read:)
"Scott, the best way to increase Java revenue
is to build a mobile phone."
That's the e-mail we just looked at a minute ago?
Yes.
That's your e-mail to Mr. McNealy?

Yes.

o > 0 »

And he probably, for the record, forwarded that to

ing

string

26.
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Mr. Gosling?
A. Right.
Q. And Mr. Gosling sent an e-mail back to both of you?
A. Yes.
Q. So let's go back to the top of the page, now we hav
context. Mr. Gosling said:
"Oddly enough, this has been our wishful
thinking strategy of record for years. We
could never fund it internally so got
nowhere."
Right?
A. | think that's what | said. They never started the
project. They had the same idea we had, but they
the project.
Q. Now, he mentions here that they actually purchased
assets of an outside company called Savage, to tr
to build a stack, right?
A. It says, We could never fund it internally. We got
nowhere. So, | mean, that's the part -- that's w
right at the top of this e-mail message, that we
it. It was a project that never got funded. Tha
recollection.
Q. Let me take you a little further down the page,
Mr. Ellison. It says:

"There was an outside company, Savage, that

e the

never started

the

y to use those

hat | read
never funded

t's my
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A.

Q.

did essentially the perfect thing almost five
years ago, but back then they were far too
expensive to acquire."
He then says, a sentence later:
"We bought their assets a couple of years ago
in a 'fire sale' and doing a more complete
handset stack became our real strategy of
record a couple of years ago."
Do you see that?

And it said he couldn't fund it.

Do you remember him telling you that they actually

out and bought assets at Sun --

A.

Q.
A.

Yes.
-- to try to build a smart phone?

Yes. They bought the assets, but they never put pe

the project. They never funded the project, is w

to me.

went

ople on

hat this says

MR. VAN NEST: Could we highlight the last sentence

of the e-mail. That's it.

BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q.

He said:
"We had a pretty big handset applications
team, but they appeared in the last RIF."
THE COURT: No, "disappeared.”

MR. VAN NEST: [I'm sorry. "... they disappeared in
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the last RIF."
Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Now, handset applications team, you understood that to
mean a team to build handset applications in the smart phone

market, right?

A. Yes.
Q. None of these efforts came to fruition, in that Sun was
never able to build its own Java smart phone, as far as you

know, Mr. Ellison, right?

A. James Gosling told me Sun never funded the project.

That's what he told me. They never provided adeq uate funding
for the project, yes, correct.

Q. Now, you assembled a team at Oracle to look at buil ding

your own Java phone, right?

A. Yeah, to examine -- when we have an idea, a proposa | to
build a new product, we put a team of people toge ther that, you
know, kind of analyzes what it would cost, how lo ng it would

take, what are the market dynamics.

So we did a detailed analysis of the idea, what i t
would take to build a smart phone. That's correc t.
Q. And that involved getting a bunch of engineers to d 0 some
work?
A. Yes.

Q. And run some simulations?
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A. Well, I wouldn't say simulations. Maybe build prot
yes.

Q. One of the things they looked at as a starting poin
Android, right?

A. Yes.

Q. They actually looked at the Android system to see w
parts of that you at Oracle could use to build yo

phone, right?

A. That's correct.

Q. And they ran some tests on Android as part of that?
A. Yes.

Q. And they examined this platform that Android entail
right?

A. Yeah. Android included a lot of open source code |
Linux operating system. And we looked at all of

Android. We did a detailed study of Android. Th

the things we did when we looked at our own smart

Q. This is all in 2009, before you met with Mr. Schmid
A. That's correct.

Q. And one of the things you looked at was using the A
developers, the Android handset makers, to build

you, right?

A. Well, yeah. The Android handset makers are people

Samsung. So they build handsets -- they build lo

handsets. Of course, there's a limited number of

otypes,

t was

hat

ur own smart

ed,

ike the
the pieces of
at's one of

phone design.

t?

ndroid

a phone for

like
ts of

handset
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manufacturers. So we looked at the same handset manufacturers
that build for Android. LG, Samsung, Motorola, N okia, all

those people.

Q. But you expressly asked your engineers to find out who was
building the handsets for Android so you could ta Ik with them

n particular, right?

A. We did a detailed study of Android, yes.

Q. Let's -- I'd like to show you trial Exhibit 2044, a nd ask

you if you recognize it?

A. Could I just have a second to look at it?

Q. Certainly.

A. Okay.

Q. Is this a report on Project Java Phone at Oracle?

A. This is the analysis of what -- what the engineers thought
it would take for -- you know, if we wanted to en ter the

handset business. Wanted to enter the software b usiness

portion of the smart phone business.
MR. VAN NEST: And | would offer in evidence, Your
Honor, Exhibit TX 2044.
MR. BOIES: No objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you. Received in evidence.
(Trial Exhibit 2044 received in evidence.)
(Document displayed.)

MR. VAN NEST: Could we display the cover page, two

pages in, please. There we go.
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BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Does this appear to be the opening --

MR. VAN NEST: You had it.

Q. -- the opening page there, the cover, Project Java Phone?
A. Yes.

Q. Strategy and Product Definition?

A. Yes.

Q. This is a 27/30-page report, something like that.

A. Yes, 27.

Q. Appears to include quite a bit of work involved in getting
this done?

A. Yes.

Q. This took months, weeks? Do you know?

A. | think weeks, not months.

Q. Okay. Let's look at the first page, the agenda.

Is this the agenda that you were pursuing with
Project Java Phone, Mr. Ellison?
A. No. This is kind of the -- what's called -- these are
kind of the issues associated with, yeah, smart p hone. Not
guite an agenda.
Q. Fair enough.
A. Yes. Okay. Fair enough.
Q. And there's a Java phone update with some technical
options and recommendation, right?

A. Yes.
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project. What does that mean, M&A?

A. We might not have the expertise in-house or assets
n-house to build a -- the smart phone software,

have to buy some companies. M&A stands for merge

acquisitions.

technology from them?

A. If we didn't have the capability in-house to build

Java smart phone software, we would probably have

hire a bunch of people from outside or, potential

companies that had that expertise.

Q. And have you heard the expression "buy versus build
A. Sure.

Q. And that's a common expression in terms of launchin

product or developing a new product?

A. It's a common expression in terms of developing a n
product.

Q. So one option, you can build it yourself --

A. Right.

Q. -- right?

A. Right.

Q. Or you can buy it from someone else?

A. Or a combination of the two. Buy part, build part.

Q. Now, in connection with this smart phone idea of yo

Q. And then there's a proposed M&A associated with the

Q. The idea would be buy some companies and get relate

SO we might
rs and
d
the
to either
ly, buy some
II?
g a new
ew
urs,
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you also considered buying technology from compan

and Palm, right?

A. | think we might have looked at -- again, we look a
everything. | mean, and considered -- I'm not su

seriously considered buying RIM. At the time the

very expensive. Palm, in contrast, was much less

But, yes, we look at everything. We look at
everything, sure.

Q. And you looked at -- one option was buying Palm, ri

You looked at that option?

A. We looked -- yeah. | say we look at everything, ye
Q. Including looking at Palm?

A. Yes.

Q. But you concluded that Palm was not competitive, ri
A. Correct.

Q. You also looked at RIM, and concluded RIM was too
expensive?

A. Yes.

THE COURT: Please, remind the jury what RIM is.

Research in Motion, RIM, makes Blackberry.
THE COURT: Is that right, Mr. Ellison?
THE WITNESS: Yes, itis, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. Go ahead.

MR. VAN NEST: I'm sorry. RIM makes Blackberry.

ies like RIM

re if we
y were very,

expensive.

ght?

ght?
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BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Now, could we go down a couple of pages, to page 6,
please.
And was there a discussion about handsets and
hardware as part of the Java phone evaluation?
A. Give me a second to look at page 6.

Okay. Go ahead.
Q. And under the recommendations for version 1.0 --

MR. VAN NEST: Could we highlight that, note 1.
Maybe make it a little bigger.
BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. That says:

"Target 3 Android handset manufacturer for

parallel negotiations but finalize contract

with only one handset maker."

Do you see that?
A. | do.
Q. That's a reference to identifying who's making the Android
handsets and going and talking to them, right?
A. That's correct.

Q. The idea there was to save time?

A. The idea there was to -- let's say Samsung was alre ady
making this hardware that ran the Android softwar e. It would

be very convenient for -- if our software ran on the same exact
hardware.
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Q. And that would save you time in terms of getting to
market?

A. It would save us time in terms of getting to market
would make it more attractive to Samsung because

already making the hardware.

Q. And it would probably make it cheaper, too, because
already had this things developed, right?

A. Correct. Saves time and money.

Q. Now, you also targeted using some of the Android so
as part of this project, too, right?

A. | think we looked at using -- well, again, Android
software. Part of the Android software is Java.

Android software is Linux. So I'm not sure what

Linux is open source, available the GPL license.

So -- but we -- but we looked at all the pieces -

is, yes, we looked at every piece of Android. |

be specific what Android was made up of.

Q. But you looked at every single piece of Android as
this project?

A. We looked at everything.

Q. Let's go down to page 11. And can we highlight --
moment there to take a look, Mr. Ellison. I'm go

asking you about the recommendation for version 1

the middle of the page, note 1.

A. Okay.

they were

they

ftware

Part of the

you mean.

- the answer

just want to

part of

take a

ing to be

.0. It's at
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Q. And that says, "Target single operating system only
Android Linux," right?

A. Correct.

Q. There are lots of operating systems?

A. There are lots of operating systems. Yes. Yes, th
answer is yes, there are lots of operating system

Q. But the one the engineers at Oracle said you should
was Android's Linux, right?

A. Well, not clear there's such a thing as the Android

| mean, there's a Linux, but that's --

Q. Excuse me, Mr. Ellison. My question was, your engi
said that the single operating system to target w

Linux. Isn't that what this says?

A. That's what that says, yes, but there is no such th
Android Linux.

Q. Now, you also knew that you could take Android Linu
free and distribute it under the Apache license,

A. We knew -- Linux is open source, generally availabl
license. So Linux is something we use. | mean,
something that Android used in their phone and Li

something we were free to use in our phone.

Linux." It's the Linux that's in the Android pho

precise description of what we were going to use.

Q. All right. But the engineering description in your

That's why I'm objecting to the notion of "Androi

e
S.

target

Linux.

neers
as Android

ing as

x for
right?

e for
Linux is
nux was

d

ne, is a more
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engineering report says "Android Linux," right?
A. Yes. I'mjust trying to be very precise. | don't think
this is very precise.

THE COURT: I just think there is possibly something
that the jury has lost track of and that is this: The time
frame.

I'm going to ask you to ask questions, not answer

them in front of the jury. Just ask questions. But clear up:
Are we talking here about Android in the possessi on of Google
or Android in the possession of some other compan y not yet

acquired by Google?
MR. VAN NEST: This is Android Google.

BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q. Mr. Ellison, this is in 2009 that these discussions are
occurring?
A. That's correct.

Q. And by 2009 Android was already launched by Google?
A. Yes.
Q. It was out there on handsets being manufactured by

Motorola and others?

A. That's correct.

Q. And Samsung?

A. Correct.

Q. And it was out there as a public open source projec t?
A. Yes.
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Q.

A.

Okay.
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. That clears that up.
MR. VAN NEST: Thank you.

THE COURT: Continue on.

BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q.

recommendation, please, the very bottom bullet th ere.

Then if we could open up the bottom bullet in this

‘Licensed under Apache Public License."

Your engineers noted for you that because Android was
available under a public license from Apache, you , Oracle,
could take advantage and use it, too? That's wha t that means?
A. Yes.
Q. Now, in the course of this report, you identified s ome

next steps for development, right?

MR. VAN NEST: Can we have Page 127
(Document displayed)

MR. VAN NEST: Could we highlight the next steps for

development?

| seeit. Yes, of course.

BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q.

So one of the next steps was to, quote:
"Run Java ME..."
That's Java Micro Edition, correct?
Right.

(Continuing)
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"...on Android and evaluate performance and
resource power usage"?
A. Correct.
Q. So one of the steps was to actually run a Sun Java
on top of Android and evaluate how that worked?
A. Correct.
Q. And the report notes.
"Work is currently underway. Will report

status by August 15."

Right?
A. Correct.
Q. Now, this report ultimately generated a series of p

and issues in developing your own Java smart phon

A. I'm not -- I'm not sure what you mean "problems and
issues."” But, yes, there are always problems and

Q. And one problem that identified clearly was you did
have internal expertise at Oracle for making smar

A. Making smart decisions?

Q. In this field.

A. We didn't have -- we had never built a smart phone
That wasn't Oracle's business. Oracle's Java bus

big server computers, you know. We have never bu
phone before. We had no experience in-house on t

very little.

MR. VAN NEST: Could I have Page 23?

product

roblems

e, right?

issues, sure.

n't

t decisions?

before.
iness was on
ilt a smart

his at all, or
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(Document displayed)
BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Take a look at Page 23, Mr. Ellison. It's right in
of you there.
(Witness complied.)
Q. And with respect -- and | have it on the monitor as
fit's easier to see.
With respect to this area of evaluation, the
prganizational model, what you identified as prob
"Very limited internal expertise to make

smart decisions."

Right?
A. Well, again, smart decisions is about smart phones.
Q. Fair enough.
A. We had no experience about smart phones.
Q. And that was one of the problems with developing a
phone at Oracle?
A. Oh, absolutely. We had never developed a smart pho
before.
Q. Now, | take it you never did develop a smart phone,

least not based on this project?

A. No. As a result of this evaluation, we decided not
build a smart phone.

Q. And, therefore, you didn't, right?

A. Correct. We did not.

front

well,

lem three was:

smart

ne

at

to
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Q.

And as part of this evaluation, was it part of this

evaluation or separate evaluation that you consid

Palm and getting technology from them?

A.

It was part of this evaluation. As you said earlie

didn't have a lot of -- we had no people in-house

built a smart phone before. One way to get those

n-house would have been to buy Palm.

Q.

Now, it was after all of these sessions and this Pr

Java Phone that you met with Mr. Schmidt, correct

A.

Q.

Yes.

And you met with him in your home on the Peninsula

sometime in March of 2010?

A.
Q.
A.

Q.

| believe so.

Just of two of you were there?

Yes.

And you discussed the probability with him of a joi

project between Oracle and Google around smart ph

A.

Not -- well, we -- what we discussed was him using

Java in the smart phone, in Android. If you're c

joint project, okay, but it really was, to be pre

them taking our Java and putting it in Android ra

their version of Java. That's what it was.

Q.

And you had an argument for him that you had a new

machine that was better than what was in Android,

A.

Yes.

ered buying

r, we
that had ever

people

oject

nt
ones, right?

our
alling that a
cise, about

ther than

virtual

right?
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Q. By then you had done this analysis of Android and
concluded that you, at Oracle, could do better?
A. Yes.

Q. You told him your virtual machine would boot faster ,

right?

A. Yes.

Q. That it would run faster?

A. Yes.

Q. That it would save power?

A. Yes.

Q. That it would save Google money?

A. If they got it from -- if they got it from us rathe r than

doing it themself, yes. Yes.
Q. And didn't you tell them that Sun, Oracle and Googl| e could

have a joint project to build this?

A. No. | said that we would build -- they could take our
version of Java and put it into Android. That is not a joint
project. That is, we would develop Java. They w ould take our
Java and put it in Android. That is not a joint -- that is not

a joint project, no.

MR. VAN NEST: I'd like to play as an admission, a
party admission, your Honor, from Mr. Ellison's d eposition at
Page 83, Lines 16 through 25.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

(Videotape played in open court.)
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BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q. So this was a proposal for joint technology develop
between Oracle and Google, right?

A. If you want to call it a joint project or -- obviou
called it a joint project, but it meant we would
they would incorporate into the Android phone. |

oint project, okay, but...

Q. You never reached agreement with Mr. Schmidt that d

right?
A. Never reached agreement with Mr. Schmidt, correct.
Q. I think you also mentioned meeting with Mr. Page; t

several months later?

Yes.

You met with him again at your home on the Peninsul
Yes.

And just the two of you were present?

Yes.

o >» o » 0 »

You made the same proposal to him for a joint techn
development between Oracle and Google, right?

A. | gave him that, among other options. | gave Eric
options, Eric Schmidt other options as well.

Q. And your idea, as expressed to Mr. Page, was that G
engineers and Oracle engineers would work togethe

Android, right?

A. The idea was they could use our version of Java in

ment

sly, |

build Java and

called it a

ay,

hat was

a?

ical

other

oogle

r to improve

the
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Android phone. And if you can -- if you want to call that our
engineers working together with their engineers o n Android, you
can call it that.
I'm just saying that our engineers would work on
Java, give it to the Google engineers to include in Android.
If you want to call that working together, that's fine.
Q. Well, didn't you call it working together?
A I'm happy to call it working together.
Q. You did call it working together, didn't you?
A | certainly -- okay.
MR. VAN NEST: [ would like to play as a party
admission from Mr. Ellison's deposition Page 90, Lines 23
through 91, Line 1.
THE COURT: All right. Go ahead.
(Videotape played in open court.)
MR. VAN NEST: Did we get his answer? Could we play
that again, please.
(Videotape played in open court.).
MR. MR. BOIES:  Your Honor, for context can we have
the previous question and answer read?
THE COURT: All right.
MR. VAN NEST: We can. Certainly, your Honor.
THE COURT: Do you have it handy?

MR. VAN NEST: [ do.

THE COURT: All right. Here is the way it works.
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You know | told you that nothing a lawyer ever sa ys is
evidence, but counsel is going to read from the d eposition.
That will be evidence because he's reading from p art of the

evidentiary record in a deposition.

Go ahead, counsel.

MR. VAN NEST: | was going to actually play the two
guestions and answers together. Is that -- or do you want me
ust to read it?

THE COURT: | think you ought to just read it because
when you played it, it got clipped off. So why d on't you read
it from the transcript?

MR. VAN NEST: The prior question is at Page 90,
Line 18.

"QUESTION: So this was a proposal for the

joint technology development between Oracle

and Google, right?

"ANSWER: It was an offer, yeah. It was an

offer. Yeah, you know, to work on the Java

inside of Android together.

"QUESTION: And the idea would be Google

engineers work with Oracle engineers, improve

the product, put out a better product?

"ANSWER: Correct."

THE COURT: Thank you.
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BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Mr. Ellison, that never happened either, right?
A. No.
Q. The next thing that happened after that was this la
right?
A. Yes.
MR. VAN NEST: Nothing further your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you.
Mr. Boies?
MR. MR. BOIES: Thank you, your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MR. BOIES:

Q. During cross examination you were asked whether you
when the GPL license was first available; do you

A. Yes, | do.

Q. Was the GPL license available in 2009 and 20107?

A. Yes, it was.

Q. You were also asked and shown questions from your
deposition saying nobody owns Java programming la
anybody can use without royalty; do you recall th

A. Yes.

Q. And you said you were not sure; do you recall that?
A. Yeah. I'm not a lawyer. I'm not exactly sure what

words mean.

Q. And why are you not sure?

WSuit,

knew

recall that?

nguage,

at?

those
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A. | don't know if you can copyright a language. 1 ju
don't know the answer to that question.

Q. Okay. Now, you were also asked questions that said
Oracle didn't create Java, didn't create these AP

created these APIs. Do you recall that?

A. Yes.

Q. How did Oracle get the APIs?

A. We bought Sun and we bought all the assets of Sun a
part of buying Sun, we got Java.

Q. And the assets that you bought when you bought Sun

included a lot of things other than Java, correct

A. It did.
Q. But was Java an important part of why you bought Su
A. | publicly said of all the things we have ever purc

by far the most important thing we have ever purc
Java.
Q. And when did you say that publicly?

A. Shortly after we announced we were buying Sun.

Q. Now, you were also shown some statements where you

you were flattered that there was a Java phone in
marketplace from Google; do you recall that?

A. That's correct.

Q. Did you ever say that you were flattered or favored

incompatible version of Java?

A. No. | always thought we could persuade Google to m

st
Is. Sun

nd as a
?

n?

hased,
hased was

said
the

an

ake
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their version of Java compatible. We want Java t

used as possible, but we want -- you know, everyo

their versions compatible. We thought Google wou

compatible, too.

Q.

Other than Google, is there any company that you're

of that is using Sun or Oracle APIs that has not

version compatible?

A.

Q.

Nobody.

You were also asked a number of questions about whe

Oracle wanted to build a smart phone and what the

do you recall that?

A.
Q.

Yes.

Was there anything in any of the documents that you

reviewed in connection with that or any of the di

you recall that dealt at all with whether or not

intellectual property was being used by Google?

A.

Q
A
Q.
A
Q

Could you repeat? I'm sorry. Repeat the question?
Sure, sure. You saw a lot of documents.

Yeah.

About the smart phone project.

Right.

Did that have anything to do with the issue of whet

not Google was infringing Oracle's copyrights?

A.

I'm not -- | don't think | saw any of that in relat

our smart phone project. The -- the --

0 be as wisely

ne else makes

Id make them
aware

made their

ther

Process was;

scussions that

Oracle's

her or

ion to
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MR. VAN NEST: Objection, your Honor. He's answered
the question.

THE COURT: Do you think you've answered the

guestion?

THE WITNESS: No, | don't, your Honor.

THE COURT: Please continue.
A. So, we certainly -- | think Jonathan Schwartz sent me a
note after we bought Sun -- or agreed to buy Sun where he
putlined the battle Sun was having with Google. And at that
point | acquainted myself with all of the details of Google's
use of Sun's intellectual property in the Java ph one.

So, but that's when [ first learned about the use of
Sun's intellectual property for the phone and I k new that --

THE COURT: We're getting into --

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: (Continuing) -- hearsay at this point.
So we need to ask a fresh question.

THE WITNESS: Sorry.

MR. MR. BOIES: Thank you, your Honor.
BY MR. MR. BOIES:
Q. You were also asked when you first met with Mr. Sch midt.
Mr. Schmidt is with Google, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And you said it was in 2010; do you recall that?

A. Yes.
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Q. When did the acquisition of Sun actually close?
A. January, 2010.
Q. And prior to the time that it closed, were you empo wered
n any way to discuss with Google or anyone else Sun's
ntellectual property?
A. No.

MR. MR. BOIES: No more questions, your Honor.

MR. VAN NEST: May I follow up, your Honor?

THE COURT: Biriefly.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Mr. Ellison, you made reference to an email from
Mr. Schwartz that you received?
A. Yes, yes.
Q. That emalil --
MR. VAN NEST: May | approach the witness, your
Honor?
THE COURT: Yes, you may.
BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Let me show you Exhibit 2362, please.
(Whereupon, document was tendered

to the witness.)

Q. Do you recognize it?
A. May | just have a couple seconds?
Q. Certainly.

Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR.
Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR.
Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Case3:10-cv-Q3oP ks AP AEIT FRRAPNHERAN- &N A pRpge 127 of 20350

(Brief pause.)
A. Yes.
Is that the email?
A. Yes.
MR. VAN NEST: | offer 2362 into evidence, your
Honor.
MR. MR. BOIES: No objection, your Honor.
THE COURT: 2362 is received.
(Trial Exhibit 2362 received
in evidence)

BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q. Let's focus on what you saw from Mr. Schwartz, the
of the page.

(Document displayed)
A. Okay.

It's below "Larry, first congrats." Below that.

This is an email from Mr. Schwartz to you, correc

A. Correct.

Q. Right after you agreed to acquire Sun, right?
A. Yes.

Q. He says:

"There's obviously a lot we didn't focus on
during the past week... from the
instrumentation we're building into our open

source assets to the battles with Adobe

bottom

t?
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Flash/Google Android, Microsoft's

distribution dependencies, et cetera.”

Right?
A. Correct.
Q. You received this email in April of 2009, right?
A. Correct.
Q. And then it was after you received this email that you
went on stage at JavaOne in June of 2009 and made those remarks

about being flattered by Android, right?
A. Yes.

Q. And it was after you received this email that you

collected up all those Oracle engineers to do Pro ject Java,
right, Project Java Phone? That was after this e mail, correct?
A. Correct.

Q. And all that work we talked about and all that revi ew,

that was after this email?
A. Yes.
MR. VAN NEST: | have nothing further, your Honor.
MR. MR. BOIES:  Nothing more, your Honor.
THE COURT: May Mr. Ellison step down and be excused
from any subpoena?
MR. VAN NEST: Yes, your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Mr. Ellison, thank you for

coming. Please leave behind our documents, but t ake with you

any that you brought.

Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR.
Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR.
Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Case3:10-cv-Q3oP ks AP AEINT FRRAPNIHERAN- RN A Rp0e 129 of 20352

THE WITNESS: Thank you.
THE COURT: Have a good day.
(Witness excused.)
THE COURT: All right. It's now 11:05. Who is the
next witness going to be?
MR. JACOBS: That would be Mr. Kurian, your Honor.

THE COURT: | think we will take a 15-minute break a

ittle early.
Remember the admonition. We'll take a 15 minute
break.
(Jury exits the courtroom at 11:03 a.m.)
THE COURT: Please be seated.
Here are some things for the record. When you pl ay a
videotaped deposition -- | think | mentioned this at the
pretrial conference -- the court reporters do not take it down.
It's because they only record the spoken word her e in court.

They don't record videotaped things.

So how will your record look to the Court of Appe als?
Well, the way you have do it, the only way to do it, is for you
to put into the record a marked exhibit, a CD, th at has the
exact excerpt that you played; not the entire dep osition,

because that won't do them any good.
You need to give to Dawn by tomorrow morning what you

played today and give the other side a copy.

Usually in these trials the lawyers agree upon a
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procedure so that if you both agreed, maybe you d id it at the
end of the week or some interval that's better fo r you, that's
fine with me; but if you don't -- if you don't pa y attention to
your record, it will get out of control and then you'll be
bombarding -- | don't know. You'll be bombarding the
conformance with excuses. So | urge you to pay a ttention to
this detail.

Now, when you do read one to the jury, for exampl e,
t's not on the videotape, | think what Mr. Van N est did was
pretty close to the way it should be done, which IS you say
"Question." You pause. Then you read the questi on exactly.
Then you say "Answer." Pause. Read the answer e xactly. And
that's so the court reporter, as well as the jury , will know
where the question started and stopped and the an swer started

and stopped.

So far you have only done it that one time, but i n
most trials that's the way it's done all the time

MR. VAN NEST: You said "pretty close," your Honor.

THE COURT: I think you didn't use the word "Answer,"

but that -- it was clear enough. But you should always say
"Question,"” "Answer." Because they don't know wh ere the
guestion starts and stops or the answer starts an d stops unless

you do that, but in context it was close enough.

So | ask you to pay attention to this CD thing so

that -- or | guess it's called DVD thing, so that it doesn't
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get out of control and our record is maintained p roperly.

And then while we're on the record, | started wit

2939, but | know that you had those deposition ex hibits and |
still need to have the list of the ones that were moved into
evidence this morning. So at the break if you ca n hand that to

Dawn, | will add it to my list.
Okay. So we'll take a 15 minute --

MR. VAN NEST: Your Honor, can | ask a quick

guestion?

THE COURT: Of course.

MR. VAN NEST: With respect to the CD part of it,
should we simply put on one CD everything that we played that
day, or do you want a separate CD for each witnes s?

THE COURT: Everything for one day would be even
better, because you could probably put the entire trial on one
CD if you wanted to. But if you wait that long, it will get
out of control. You'll get into an argument. Yo u ought to do
this in short pieces. Like, one day is good. On e week is
good. That will be fine. But if you wait til th e very end, |
promise you, you all will be disagreeing on what was actually

played and then there will be a fight.
MR. VAN NEST: Then should we give it to the court
reporter? Is that what she likes?

THE COURT: That's correct. It's actually -- it

needs to be identified as excerpts played on Apri | 16th or
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17th, as the case may be. All right?
MR. VAN NEST: We'll do it.
MR. JACOBS: Briefly, your Honor, this may have been

covered with the jury in the jury assembly room.

We're avoiding contact with them in the elevators and
the hallways. It would be perhaps helpful to exp lain to them
that it's not because we're unfriendly, but becau se that's the

proper protocol.
THE COURT: All right. | always tell them that and
if | haven't already, | will tell them that.
Anything more?
MR. VAN NEST: No, your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. 15 minutes. Thank you.
(Whereupon there was a recess in the proceedings
from 11:08 a.m. until 11:26 a.m.)
THE COURT: Please be seated.
Thank you. Back to work. Call in the jury.
You can bring in your witness.
(Thomas Kurian enters the courtroom.)
THE COURT: Please have a seat. We can swear you in
after the jury is present. Thank you. Welcome t o the Court.
(Jury enters courtroom at 11:27 a.m.)
THE COURT: Welcome back. Be seated, please.

Is everything on over there now?

(Jury nodding affirmatively.)
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THE COURT: Okay, great.

Okay. Oracle may call its next witness.

right hand.
THOMASKURIAN

duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE CLERK: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: Allright. Very well. Welcome. Please
be seated.

You see how close | am to this? You've got to be
about that close, and it will move back and forth
easier for you.

So why don't you say your name and let's see if
you're coming through?

THE WITNESS: Thomas Kurian.

THE COURT: Very good.

Thank you, counsel.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. JACOBS:
Q. Mr. Kurian, could you introduce yourself again by n

title to the jury, please?

A. My name is Thomas Kurian. I'm Oracle's executive

THE COURT: Mr. Kurian, please stand and raise your

MR. JACOBS: Your Honor, Oracle calls Thomas Kurian.

. Make it

called as a witness for the Plaintiff herein, hav ing been first

ame and
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vice-president for software development.

Q. How long have you worked for Oracle?

A. Since 1996.

Q. And what are your responsibilities now?

A. I run -- I am responsible for the development and t
design and delivery of Oracle software products.

Q. Who do you report to?

A. | report to Oracle's CEO, Mr. Larry Ellison.
Q. How does Java fit into your job responsibilities?
A. The development team that builds our Java products

into my organization. And we -- I'm also respons
number of Oracle's software products that are the
in Java.
Q. What's the family of products called that is based
Java?
A. So there are two sets of products that we, as Oracl
build using Java technology. There is a product
Oracle Fusion Middleware.
And we also sell a number of business application
things to do, things like customer relationship m
supply change, managing accounting. They are cal

applications that are also written in Java.

Q. How do you happen to find yourself working at Oracl
19967
A. | have a computer science and electrical engineerin

he

reports

ible for a

mselves built

on

€,

family called

anagement,

led package

ein
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undergraduate degree from Princeton University.
software developer myself for a number of years i
before college.
| have a master's degree in business administrati
from Stanford.
| joined Oracle from a company called McKinsey
Consulting, and | have been at Oracle since "96.
Q. And how did you happen to find yourself at Princeto
A. | came to the United States from India on a scholar
| learned programming before college in high scho
study my undergraduate degree in computer science
electrical engineering at Princeton.
Q. | would like to talk with you about Oracle's use of
before the acquisition of Sun, so Oracle, as a cu
licensee of Java technology.

Just to get us oriented, on our timeline here Ora
acquires Sun in January of 2010. So | would like
about the period before that.

Can you tell us how it came to be that Oracle use
Java in its own business before that acquisition
A. Oracle started building Java products as early as 1
And there are four places that we use Java within
product line.

First of all, in our data base. Second, in our

development tools. Third is in our middleware pr

| was a

n college and

on

n?
ship.
ol. I cameto

and

Java

stomer or

cle

to ask you

occurred?
996.

the Oracle
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Fourth, in our business applications.
In our data base we integrated Java inside of our

data base so that -- you know, a data base is a p

software that allows you to manage information an

guestions from that information. And we put Java

base so that developers who are writing applicati

data bases to ask questions and query information

n Java, because it's much more open than the oth

that people traditionally use to program database

Second, we then got requests from customers to bu

a development environment so that programmers cou
interface which they could write programs in Java
introduced a product called J Developer, or Java
other words, to allow developers, programmers to
in Java.

Then as the internet became the way that people b
applications and built websites, we introduced a
Oracle Fusion Middleware. And what it really is
collection of technologies to allow people to bui
very sophisticated websites using Java.

And then, finally, we also took our packaged
applications. When | say "packaged applications,
want -- you know companies want to do accounting.

do -- manage how they manufacture products. They

software that handles how they distribute product

lece of
d then ask
into the data
ons accessing
could do that
er languages
s with.

ild
ld have a nice
. And so we
developer in

write programs

uilt
product called
IS a

|d websites,

" people
They want to
want to have

s and manage
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their warehouses. Retailers want to have softwar

how you buy things at the point of sale. We deli
packaged applications to enable companies to do t
packaged applications, a number of them, are also

Java.

Q. What was it about Java that made it so attractive f
these various uses that Oracle was making of it?

A. There were three reasons we chose to use Java to bu
these solutions. One is the availability develop

is the interest from corporate customers. And th

cost for Oracle. So I'll explain maybe each of t

Q. Please.

A. So the availability of developers. You know, by th
2000s Java had by far become the most popular pro
language in the industry. And so when we built s

was easy for us to find developers who new Java t

own engineering teams. And, also, when we sold s
companies, the information technology departments
often said, "Can you guys implement your software
because then it's easier for us to find people to

applications using Java?" So that was reason num

Reason number two is Java enforced a set of stand

that allowed corporate customers to have choice a

different vendors. Okay? So take as an example

middleware, there is a component called an applic

e that manages
ver a lot of
hat and those

written in

or

ild
ers. Second
ird is the

hem.

e early
gramming
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or web server. It's the thing that if you click

tfoday, most websites are served up using an appli
or web server. And Java enforces a set of standa
multiple vendors support; oracle, IBM, Red Hat, a
players. So why corporate customers like that is
their internal departments to build applications

the standards and then one day if they decide the
to use Oracle software, but they want to go and s
IBM, or they don't like IBM software and they wan
over to somebody else, they have that choice and

locked into a particular vendor.

us to deliver solutions in Java and many of them
of their requisition process, when they put out a
software they say: Are you compliant with X vers
Java specification in order to get -- you know, t
freedom of choice.

The third reason we chose to use Java was cost.
there were two reasons for cost for Oracle. One
capability to -- they call it write once, run any
what it does is it essentially means that you don
heavy cost in porting our software to run across
operating systems or processors.

Q. You better explain porting and how it relates to op

systems and processors.

So the second reason was corporate customers dema

on a website
cation server
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number of
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A. So, normally when you write a piece of software, yo
tin a language called a programming language.
that programming language and you run it through
called a compiler. Okay. A compiler takes that,
English type syntax, and converts it into machine
code.
With the vast majority of programming languages,
you convert it from that English syntax to machin
code, you have to write it for -- there's a speci
and specific machine readable code for each hardw
So if you were to compile it for Windows, for exa
one compiler for Microsoft to do that. If you co
run on IBM's processor called the Power Processor
different compiler to process that. If you chose
HP's computer, you had to use yet another process
or compiler to do that.
With Java, what Java has is something called a
bytecode, a portable bytecode. So in Java what y
take the source code, which is written in English
and you compile it using a Java compiler and you
called a bytecode, and that bytecode is portable
operating systems and hardware platforms. So onc
it once, it works on Intel's processor. It works

processor. It works on the Sun Spark Processor.

HP's processor. And it also is portable across J

u write
You then take
something
let's call it

readable

when

e readable

fic compiler
are platform.
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to doiton
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machines that are compliant with the standard.
And so as a result, we don't have to have hundred
people responsible for taking our software when i
Java and certifying it on every different hardwar
pperating system. So that's what | mean by lower
of porting.

The other factor for us is because of the migrant
Java ecosystem, there is a lot of third-party too
utilities and other things that we can use in bui
software. And so the forth factor is also lower
Q. How did the Java APIs and class libraries fit into
picture of the value to Oracle when you were maki
decisions to base your products on Java?

A. So the APIs and class libraries -- maybe | should e
what an APl is or a class library.

When you write an application program, you write
in a language called a programming language. And
language is just a descriptive set of syntax that
know, it's an expressive syntax to say, here is h
you describe a set of instructions that you want
computer to then have the computer operate.

Class libraries are different. What class librar
are are packaged programs that are encapsulated w

interface called an Application Programming Inter

And what they provide is essentially prepackaged

s of
t's written in
e platform and
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so that developers don't have to write all of tha
functionality every time themselves. Okay?
So when you look at these class libraries, they a
basically prepackaged utilities that provide a lo
functions for programmers to build applications w
are abstracted through a blueprint or a design in
the programming interface that says if you're cal
piece of logic, you call it through this well-spe
nterface and then this piece of code will execut
and return a set of results to you. Okay?
Now, for us, as a company building applications i
Java, the availability of these class libraries i
important for two reasons.
One is it improves the productivity of our
developers, which means we can build applications
quickly.
And, second, in the Java specification they speci
standard set of these libraries that the vendors
solutions need to comply with. And, therefore, i
that we can depend on a set of standards when we
applications to these APIs.
Q. So explain that last point just a little bit furthe
You're talking now about the ability of the Oracl

to run on multiple companies' versions of the Jav

environment, the Java virtual machine?

re
t of useful
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A. Correct. So as an example, if you look at our acco
software today, we make that available on at leas
different operating systems and hardware platform
Windows -- so on Windows and Linux, which are two
pperating systems running on the Intel processor,
pwn Java virtual machine to run on those platform
accounting software.
Now, on IBM's computer, which is called the Power
Computer running their operating system called Al
far more sophisticated virtual machine than we do
accounting software runs on that platform. And b
virtual machines implement the same specification
same class libraries, we don't have differences.
software can run across these operating systems w
issues.
Q. There is a particular specification in the Java wor
Oracle made its products consistent with, complia
application side.
A. So on the technology side, we -- there are multiple
specifications that we support in the Java world.
application programs depend on various versions o
Standard Edition, which is -- Java Standard Editi
specification for Java programs that run on a des
okay?

Java Enterprise Edition is a specification to say

unting
t five
S.
we use our
s this

X, they have a
and our same
ecause both
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You know, our
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programs should run on a server or an enterprise

ppposed to a desktop.

Micro Edition, or ME, is for it to run on a -- yo

know, a micro device, like a phone or a tablet co

And so our software packages, depending on the ki

of software, comply with these standards. So we

Java EE, Enterprise Edition, 5 and 6 in our middl

business applications. Our tools, for example, s

Standard Edition 5. And today they support both

Edition 6 and 7. So our products always comply w

version of one of these standards.

Q. Again, before the acquisition of Sun, did Oracle ta

Java license from Sun?

A. Yes, we did.

Q. And why did you do that?

A. We took a Java license from Sun for three reasons.

our engineers used to read the specifications fro

standards specifications in order to implement, f

our Java virtual machine or our middleware.
Number two -- so, we took a specification license
Number two. We certified our products to comply

the certain versions of these standards. | menti

and 6 and Java EE5. And so we took the Test Comp

license, or TCK license, to test and certify that

were compatible with the specific version of the

computer, as

mputer.
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And, third, we also took a commercial license bec
we distributed, you know, Java technology as a ve
technology.
So we took all three licenses and we did that bef
we acquired Sun for a number of years.
Q. Just spend a little bit more on the TCK license and
that fits into the overall picture here. That te
be a little confusing.
What exactly did Oracle get from Sun with respect
the TCK license?
A. So maybe | can be specific. When we implemented Or
Fusion Middleware, we, as a vendor of the technol
things.
First is our engineers read the specifications of
various parts of the standard in order to -- you
they are the blueprint or the design specificatio
software should be implemented. And so we, you k
click-through license called the spec license or
license to help our engineers implement the softw
Now, once you implement the software, there is a
separate license called the Test Compatibility Ki
What you get with it are three things.
Firstis, you get a set of tests that are literal

test suites that you can then run and test your s

and either you pass or you fail, and you technica

ause
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pass those test suites. Okay? So part one is yo
Kit.

Part two is you get the ability to submit the res
of your testing to say you've passed and you subm
Java standards process within something called th
Community Process Organization, to say | qualifie

And third, if you pass or qualify, then you get s
of the other capabilities, like the trademarks, t
and the ability to brand your solution as being c
that version of Java.

So you get these three things with the TCK.
Q. So to review, before the acquisition the three lice
that were -- that you have referred to that Oracl
business were the specification license, the TCK
the commercial license?
A. Correct.
Q. And are those three licenses -- after the acquisiti
what did Oracle do to that basic licensing struct
A. They are all the same. They are available today.
Q. And then is there -- are there royalty-free license
are available for Java technology?
A. There are two additional licenses. There is a
royalty-free license. The royalty-free license i

used by non-profit organizations, like universiti

research organizations, so that they can both tea
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students Java, so that you get more developers co
college knowing Java, and, also, research institu
want to use Java for non-commercial purposes.
There is also the open source license under somet
called the GNU public license, or GPL, that's ava
Q. And can you explain how that works?
A. How the GPL works?
Q. Yes.
A. So, there's a version -- there is a Java implementa
called the Open JDK. Open JDK is the so-called r
implementation of Java. It's implemented in an o
project called the Open JDK in which a number of
participate, eight or nine companies participate:
a company called Canonical, Red Hat, a number of
all contribute source code. Their engineers part
They contribute source code. And the resulting i
of a virtual machine is called Open JDK.

Now, developers who want to implement their own J
virtual machines can take source code from Open J
something called the GPL, GNU public license, wit
requirement; that the source code that you use an
implement a virtual machine or some other technol
from that source code, you have to contribute it

Open JDK source base.

And the reason for that is very simple. The Sun

ming out of

tions that

ilable.
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pen source
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prganization and Oracle and IBM and others who pa rticipate in
Java want to make sure that Java does not fragmen t. And by
enforcing the ability for people to get access to the source,
but to contribute back any modifications, you ens ure

essentially that Java is not fragmented.
Q. I'd like to return to the specification license for a
minute.
(Whereupon, document was tendered

to the witness.)

Q. And I've placed in front of you Exhibit 610.1 in th e
folder. And can you please identify this documen t?
A. | have it.

(Document displayed)

Q. Can you tell us what this is?
A. This is a document which is a specification license for
Java 2 Platform Standard Edition Development Kit 5.0
specification.

MR. JACOBS: 610.1 offered into evidence, your Honor.

MR. VAN NEST: No objection.

THE COURT: Received in evidence. You may publish,
if you wish.

(Trial Exhibit 610.1 received

in evidence)

BY MR. JACOBS:

Q. You referred to this earlier just a bit. You refer red
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parlier to the specification license, but let's w alk through
t.
THE COURT: Is it coming through in the jury box?
(All'jurors respond affirmatively.)
THE COURT: Okay. Great thank you. Go ahead.
BY MR. JACOBS:
Q. What in general does this license grant the license e the
right to do? What permissions does it give?
A. The paragraph, the second paragraph I think is the one
that tells you what it grants:
"Sun also grants you a perpetual
non-exclusive, worldwide, fully paid-up
royalty-free limited license (without the
right to sublicense) under any applicable
copyrights or patent rights it may have in
the specification to create and/or distribute
an Independent Implementation of the
Specification that" --
Q. Stop right there. Let's break it down a little bit
First of all, how does this specification relate to

the creation of class libraries?

A. So if you're a developer who is implementing class

libraries, the class library is a part of this sp ecification.
So typically the class library design blueprint i s available on
a website. And as a developer when you go to tha t website, you
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click and accept a -- you know, a specification | icense that
allows you to then read the blueprints and decide to implement
according to that blueprint.
And so this specification license is the one that
governs the way in which developers can understan d the design
of the blueprints.
Q. And just to be clear, is this a developer of an
mplementation of the class libraries or of Java applications?
A. This is a developer who is implementing the class
libraries.
Q. Okay. And then it says there:
"Applicable copyrights or patent rights."
And it says:
"You can create, distribute an independent
implementation of the specification."
And then it goes on to give us some more
requirements. Can you walk us through that, the additional
requirements?
A. Okay. That -- and then I'm reading from, you know, ():
"Fully implements the spec or specs including

all of its required interfaces and

functionality."
Q. What is that driving at? As Oracle administers the se
licenses, what is Oracle trying to make sure that people do?
A. In the Java standards organization and the Java
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specifications one of the very important clauses
been that an implementation has to -- an implemen
has to fully implement the specification. And by
mplementing the specification means you can't im
of the design that constitutes the specification.

And this -- and it's tied to the important
requirement that a vendor cannot implement part o
specification because if they implement just part
specification, then standard Java programs will n

their version of the -- of Java.

And, secondly, if you write to their specific

implementation, then it may not work across other

implementation of Java.

So by definition to ensure that Java is portable

across implementations for multiple vendors, it's
important that any developer or vendor implementi

fully implement the specification.

Q. And then if you look at the next item, item (ii), ¢

explain what that's all about?
A. Item (ii):

"Does not modify, subset, superset or

otherwise extend the Licensor Name Space, or
include any public or protected damages,
classes, Java interfaces, fields or methods

within the Licensor Name Space other than

has always
tation of Java
fully
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those required/authorized by the
specification or specifications being
implemented.”
Q. So in a nutshell, what's that all about?
A. So that's just a further clarification of this issu
What it says is if you're implementing these APIs
subset or superset.
By "subsetting" we mean you can't say there are 4
APIs and I'm only going to implement 25.
By "supersetting," you can't say there's 40 and |
implement all 40, but | add two of my own within
the Name Space. Name Space is just a way of sayi
separate what's delivered as part of the Java sta
considered part of the foundation and what each v
to comply with.
And then there is a separate way that you can add
your own classes for areas that do not conflict w
part of the specification and that's in a separat
call Name Space, which is a way of just demarcati
within the standard versus what's outside the sta
Q. And by making that demarcation, does the license ai
ensure that developers will not add or subtract f
APIs and associated class libraries?

A. Correct. It's done in that specific way to protect

from vendors who want to, you know, add or subtra

e.

, you cannot

'l
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of this has come about because in -- in the early 2000s,
Microsoft extended Java and they created a versio n of Java that
did technically supersetting and they have -- and , you know, to

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Q.

A.

limine.

Q.
A.

protect against that kind of, you know, developin

Java that's not standards compliant.

Do you have an understanding of what Sun did when

Microsoft came out with that supersetted version?

My understanding is --

MR. VAN NEST: Objection, your Honor. Motion in

MR. JACOBS: Consistent with the motion, your Honor.

THE COURT: It's hearsay anyway. His understanding

is not direct personal knowledge. Sustained.

MR. VAN NEST: Lacks foundation.

THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. JACOBS:

Let's go on to the next category, item three.
Category (iii) is:
"Passes the TCK (including satisfying the
requirements of the applicable TCK users
guide) for such specification."
Then it goes on to say:
"The foregoing license is expressly
conditioned on your not acting outside its

scope. No license is granted hereunder for
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any other purpose.”

Q. Now, you mentioned the TCK earlier. How does this
provision relate to the TCK?

A. What this says is if you're a developer who is read
specification and implementing software based on
blueprint in the specification, one of the requir
you have to then subsequently take the piece of s
built and then run and pass the TCK, or Test Comp
associated with that version of Java, including s
requirements in the applicable user's guide that
to run the test.

Q. And in order to get the TCK, do you have to take an
license or does that just come with the spec lice

A. No. The spec license is free of charge. It's avai
as a click-through license on the website. And i
done that way because in implementing a piece of
multiple developers in an organization may be rea
specifications. And so each developer can -- sho
can accept the click-through license on the websi

charge.

Now, when the vendor is going to sell that piece

software, distribute it, even at no cost, they th
take a second license called the Test Compatibili

and that one has a nominal charge and associated

get the test kits and then the ability to run and

ing the
the design
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you're certified to the standards organization.
MR. JACOBS: Now, if you scroll down a little bit,
Mr. Lee, to the independent implementation?

(Document displayed)
BY MR. JACOBS:
Q. So one of the requirements you read was that the
mplementation of the specification be an indepen
mplementation.

What is an independent implementation under the
license?
A. | will read the paragraph, if you don't mind, and t
explain it.
Q. Uh-huh.
A. (As read)

"For the purposes of this agreement

Independent Implementation shall mean an

implementation of the specification that

neither derives from any of Sun's source code

or binary code materials nor, except within

appropriate and separate license from Sun,

include any of Sun's source code or binary

code materials; and Licensor Name Space shalll

mean the public class or interface

declarations whose names begin with ‘Java,

Java X, Com.Sun' or their equivalents in any

dent

hen
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subsequent naming conventions adopted by Sun
through the Java community process or any
recognized successors or replacements
thereof."
Q. So let's actually just take that in reverse order.
‘Licensor Name Space" you explained that earlier?
A. Yes. The Licensor Name Space is when people write
software in Java, there needs to be a clear way o
demarcating what does a specific version of Java
the box as part of the reference implementation?
And then what is a vendor or developer goingto b
as part of their own class libraries, because a d
building an application can also build their own
libraries.
So the way that Java handles this is through
something called a Name Space. A Name Space basi
when you're writing a program, your class librari
named the following things. And the vendor who s
version of Java that's compliant with the standar
their class libraries within Java, Java X, Com.Su
provides a clean demarcation between a company.
Pick an example, CitiBank. They are building Jav
applications. They can say, We can build our own

libraries and put them in a Name Space called

CitiBank.java.something or CitiBank.X, as long as

The

f saying,

provide out of

uild
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class
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putting it into Java or JavaX or Com.Sun. And th e advantage
there is both it allows companies and developers to build class
ibraries without stepping on and bifurcating wha t's the
reference implementation and the standards compli ant
mplementation of the spec. That's what this Nam e Space
separation is. It's just a simple way of partiti oning what's

n the standard that a vendor needs to comply wit h and where
does a developer or a pool of developers building Java
applications, where can they put their own class libraries?

Q. Back to Independent Implementation. What's that cl ause
driving at?

A. Independent Implementation basically means that the re are
two kinds of developers in the -- who might be bu ilding Java
technology. One kind of developer is somebody wh 0 says in
addition to reading the specification documents, I'm actually
going to access some of the source code that's in the Open JDK
project and use that source code when | write my program.

That's type number one.

What Independent Implementation means is, | read the
blueprint that's part of the specification, but t hen | write my
own implementation in what's called a clean room, which means |
don't take any source code or binary code. | wri te it myself.

What this document says is that the specification

license applies, and the TCK compatibility requir ements apply

whether you did an independent implementation or you took
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source code from the Open JDK project. That's wh

Q. Now how does a clean room, the concept of a clean r
nto the idea of an Independent Implementation?

A. A clean room is basically a word used to refer to a
engineering project. You know, think about clean

typically came from the semiconductor industry wh

said -- you know, you went into a room and you ha

you know, clothing on that meant you didn't conta

you know, semiconductor chips.

And by "clean room" in software, it means that yo
engineers who wrote the code looked at the design
specifications so that they could understand the
was in the design, but didn't look at any source
the code by their own, you know, design. Meaning
complied with the blueprint, but they wrote the c
themselves. That's what we mean by Independent |
Q. Now, if we scroll down to the trademarks provision
license. Can you just read the first three lines
A. It says:

"Trademarks: No right, title, or interest in

or to any trademarks, service marks, or trade

names of Sun, Sun's licensors, specification

lead or the specification lead's licensor is

granted hereunder."”

Q. And then it goes on to talk about a couple of trade

at it means.
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Do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. So as you administer the licenses and as you
with them at Oracle, if you have met the requirem
specification license, do you have the right base

to use the Java logo?

A. No, you do not.

Q. What do you need to do in order to get that right?
A. You have to purchase the Test Compatible Kit licens
TCK license. You have to run the test suites. Y

pass the test suites. You then have to submit yo

the certification organization and then once they
comfortable that you, in fact, did pass correctly

the ability to use the brand and the logos.

Q. What is the underlying purpose, then, of these
requirements of, for example, not supersetting, n
implementing the whole interface? What's that al

A. It's all driving at the important notion that if yo
Java to be write once, run anywhere. Write once,
means write once. Run anywhere means you can dep
software to run across different hardware operati

you can depend on software to run in a consistent

Java stacks from different vendors. All of these

are essentially protecting that Central Valley pr

Java.

work
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Q. Are there companies that have complied with the
specification license, taken the TCK license, pai
gotten the brand for an Independent Implementatio
A. Yes. There are many companies that have done so.
Q. Did Google do that?
A. No, they do not.
Q. Let's just spend a minute more on commercial licens
royalty-bearing licenses.
I'm going to ask you about companies that -- and
you what kind of -- what their license is for and
using Java in their business.
So Sony?
A. Sony uses Java inside their blue re DVD players. T
Java on the micro controller inside the blue Ray
that does a bunch of functions that allows the DV
you know, play the DVD as well as record, and the
within the DVD player is managed using Java.
Q. How about Panasonic?
A. Panasonic puts it on some of their -- both televisi

smart televisions, as well as in their own versio

players.
Q. Cisco?
A. Cisco Systems sells the -- like a SoftPhone, which

phone that you use, but it's got a lot of softwar

allow you to do intelligent things, like conferen

d the fee,
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ask
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three-way conferencing, speed dialing, rememberin g people's

telephone numbers, all of that. That's -- so in order for the
phone to be able to do that, it needs a program t hat stores alll
that information and then manages it, and it uses a version of

Java called Java ME to do that.

Q. How about RIM, Research in Motion, Blackberry?

A. The Blackberry, you know, device actually runs Java . When
you use Blackberry's mobile device, it's actually running Java.
|t runs a version of Java called Java ME.

Q. GE?

THE COURT: GE or ME?

MR. JACOBS: | asked a new company. He said ME and
then | asked about General Electric.

THE COURT: So your answer was ME?

THE WITNESS: ME.

THE COURT: Now, you're going to GE. You mean

General Electric.

MR. JACOBS: Yes. Sorry your Honor.

A. General Electric sells home appliances, things like
refrigerators, dishwashers, laundry machines and SO on.

Within the refrigerator, for example, they use Ja va
on a microcontroller and the value that they find with Java is

that they can store a bunch of programs.

So as an example, if you leave and go on vacation and

you want the refrigerator to be at a certain temp erature and
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when you come back on a particular date, you want

for the refrigerator to become even colder becaus

have cold drinks when you come back, for example.

In order for it to do that, it needs to have a st
program that saves the calendar and can manage wh

the temperature up or down, and it does that usin

Q. Nokia?

A. Nokia's phones run on -- they have an operating sys
called Symbian, and on top of that they run progr

Q. EBay?

A. EBay is an auction site. You know, the website of
served up using a technology in Java called Java

a very simple thing. What it is is a way to buil

using Java. So they took a license for what's ca

Server Pages Version 1.2 because they were doing
implementation of that version of the standard in

be -- to make it really fast and their website re

interactive with users.

chip on them and on the chip they actually store

a -- call it an electronic wallet and the ability

and do transactions using that.

Q. Visa?

A. Visa uses a technology called Java Card.

Q. Okay.

A. So when you use a Visa card, some of the Visa cards

ahead of time
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called a Java Card trimming tool and what it is i
you to take this Java Card, which they license, b
off and trim so that no other program can run on
of what visa provides. And that's largely for se
reasons, because they don't want somebody by mist
some software downloaded on it that may steal mon
bank account.
Q. And last is Amazon?
A. Amazon has a product called the Kindle. A Kindle i
electronic book reader. And Kindle is essentiall
Java.
When you open the Kindle and read books, the
technology that allows you to actually read the b
download stuff from the Amazon site and handle al
actually based on Java.
Q. Were all these companies that you mentioned, are th
licensees under what we call the commercial licen
A. Correct. They all are.
Q. And then earlier you mentioned companies that had t
the spec and TCK license. Could you just briefly
of those companies again?
A. So IBM is an example of a company that takes both t

and TCK license. IBM is a, you know, big compute

implements technology and Java. They sell a -- t

Visa specifically uses a component of the Java Ca

rd
s it allows
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Java virtual machine. They have their own middle
Web Sphere that implements the Java Enterprise St

Java EE, and so they have got different Java prod

engineers read the design specifications. They t
icense, because when they implement the software
that their software is compliant with certain ver
specification. And they also take a commercial |
Q. And then we refer to the open source versions, the
OpenJDK.
A. Right.
Q. Can you tell us more how that's actually used by us
Java, by companies that have access to that code
A. The OpenJDK is a project that has multiple particip
There's about 300 people who have contributed to
40 different companies, okay.

What it is, is, really, it's a project where the
development of Java Standard Edition, or as we ca
virtual machine for desktops and for, you know, d
through a community of people working in open sou
So you can actually see the source code. You can
source code to it. You can petition for membersh
know, once granted membership, you can contribute

to it.

And it's a joint -- it's an organization with a

And they take both a spec license, because their

ware called
andard or

ucts.

ake a TCK
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governance structure managed by Oracle, IBM, Red Hat, and a

number of players within that community.

Now, once you -- when source code is contributed to
that, you can also take source code from OpenJDK, but you take
t under a license called the GNU public license, or GPL.
Okay.

The requirement of the GNU public license is,
basically, that you can look at the source code, you can
actually take the source code. But if you take t he source
code, anything that you do to modify the source ¢ ode or build
what they call a derivative work based on that so urce code, you

have to contribute back.
Q. And, in fact, is the GPL used widely for commercial

purposes? I'm sorry. |didn't ask that right.

Is OpenJDK under the GPL used widely for commerci al
purposes?
A. Most commercial companies don't use the OpenJDK bec ause of
the basic requirement that they want to -- commer cial companies
want to so-called add value. They want to take a Java virtual
machine and they want to optimizes it in a certai nway. Right.
And "optimize it" is specialize it for their proc essor, tailor
it to their device, optimize it for their hardwar e. And that
optimization they consider as their own unique in tellectual
property.

So they -- under the conditions of the GPL, they
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would have to contribute that back to the OpenJDK project. So,
nstead, what vendors do is they take a commercia | license for
that purpose.

Q. So we've talked now about the commercial license, t he

spec/TCK combination, and the GPL.

Is Android under any of those as Android relates to
Java?
A. No.
Q. Post acquisition now, Oracle buys Sun. At some poi nt you
actually assume some responsibility for Java. An d I'd like you
to talk about your responsibilities and what some of the
highlights of Oracle's further development of Jav a have been
since the acquisition. Let's break that down a | ittle bit.

After the acquisition, did Oracle have to play a
different kind of role than it was playing in the Java

Community Process?

A. Yes. After -- prior to the acquisition of Sun, we were a
participant in the Java Community Process. And w e implemented
software that complied with Java standards. But we didn't --
actually were not the primary steward of the Java Community
Process and the Java, you know, community organiz ation.

So we acquired Sun in January 2010. Once we acqu ired

Sun, we changed our role in three additional ways

Number one, we became the steward and primary spo nsor

for the Java standard setting organization, calle d the JCP or
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the Java Community Process, number one.

Number two, we also took over the engineering of

the -- what we call the reference implementations
specifications for many of the Java standards. T
Java Standard Edition, the design specifications
Enterprise Edition, et cetera.

And, third, we invested additionally, we also bec
the sponsors for the Java user groups, what's cal
you know, developer community, which has a number
other things where we go out and do events to get
excited about where Java is going and also train
on Java technology so that we can keep the develo
vibrant.
Q. Do you have an estimate for how much Oracle has inv
in Java since the acquisition?
A. Annually, we spend hundreds of millions of dollars
Java.
Q. And any plans to change that?
A. Not -- no.
Q. Did you at some point get involved in analyzing And
for purposes of determining what Oracle would do
A. | evaluated Android to understand largely from the
of view of trying to understand, one, how we coul

compliant with the Java specification, and, secon

technically would be involved to help make that p

and design
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Q. What did you learn?
MR. VAN NEST: Objection, Your Honor. Calls for
expert testimony. Undisclosed.
THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. JACOBS:
Q. Did you actually conduct this analysis yourself, as part

of your business responsibilities at Oracle?

pur Java engineering group.
Q. And you did this not as -- in association with this
lawsuit, but as part of your business duties, cor rect?
A. Correct, yes.
Q. What did you learn?
MR. VAN NEST: Objection, Your Honor. Same
objection. It's expert testimony.
THE COURT: Well, it is, but it does not have -- it's
okay as long as it's -- it's like a treating phys ician. As
long as he was not retained, and did this as part of his job,
it's okay. Isn'tit?
MR. VAN NEST: | thought that had to be disclosed,
Your Honor, under the rules.
THE COURT: Well --
MR. JACOBS: This is a -- laying a foundation for the
discussions that he subsequently had with Google, in which this

issue was addressed.
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THE COURT: There may be a disclosure.

MR. VAN NEST: Discussions | have no problem with.
|t's this portion here, Your Honor --

THE COURT: I do think it's required that you
dentify even fact witnesses who are going to giv e opinion
evidence.
MR. JACOBS: We're not asking him for any ultimate
ppinions, Your Honor. We're asking him for what he did, what
he learned, and what he did with that information

THE COURT: We're going to skip this part and come
back to it after we have a hearing out of the pre sence of the
jury. So see if you can work around it without h aving to get
into this piece of it.

BY MR. JACOBS:

Oracle had about Android?
A. Yes, we did.
Q. When did you first meet with him?
A. May 28, 2010.
Q. Did you meet with Alan Eustace of Google on a simil ar
topic?
THE COURT: You need to be a little closer to the
microphone.

THE WITNESS: May 28, 2010, was the date, since you

asked.
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And then we did meet with Alan Eustace sometime i
June or early July 2010.
BY MR. JACOBS:
Q.

A. Discussions were around two topics.

And what did you discuss with them?

Number one was, we proposed a mechanism through w

Google could get Android to be compliant with Jav
were three pieces of that discussion. The first
a virtual machine inside of Android called Dalvik
runs a nonJava standards compliant bytecode. Mea
that you take a Java program -- a program for And
convert it is you first compile it to standard Ja
and then you run a second step to convert it from
to something called a dex bytecode.
And so step one was a discussion on how to either
eliminate the Dalvik VM and replace it with the C
machine, which is compliant with Java Standard or
Dalvik itself to comply with the Java Standard.
The second was to get the class libraries complia
with the Java 2, Standard Edition specification.
And the third was a discussion around if they had
applications already written to run on Android, h
applications be made to work on a standard Java v
machine.

Let's focus on the second of those three elements.

Q.

hich
a. And there

is Android has

. And Dalvik
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were you driving at there?

pbjection.
THE COURT: Sustained.
At this point, all you can do is if it came up in
direct conversation with someone at Google, he ca
conversation. That would be fine. But as phrase
guestion calls for an opinion under Rule 26, and
not disclosed.

So we will have to get at it -- he can testify to
only if it was actually spoken.
BY MR. JACOBS:
Q. With respect to the second item, Mr. Kurian, Mr. Ku
what did you say to Google?
A. | specifically discussed -- we specifically discuss
Mr. Rubin that the Dalvik implementation and thei
implementation of Java needed to comply with the
specifications, which meant you had to implement
libraries completely and also pass the TCK.
Q. Did Google accept that?
A. No.
Q. Did you also discuss with Google the fact that Goog

using some class libraries in Android that had be

from the Apache Harmony project?

A. Android implements -- you know, doesn't implement -

MR. VAN NEST: Objection, Your Honor. Same

n recount the
d that

apparently was

rian,

ed with
r
Java Standard

the class

le was

en imported
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MR. VAN NEST: Objection. Leading.

THE COURT: Well, again, in light of your earlier

pbjections, counsel is trying to avoid that by fo cusing on the
word discussion. So I'm going to let him lead to that limited
extent.

Please, answer the question.

Overruled.

THE WITNESS: Yes, we did discuss the fact that
within Android there is an implementation of Java class
libraries taken from a project, an open source pr oject called

Apache Harmony.

And we pointed out that Apache Harmony had never been
granted a Test Compliance Kit certification, and had never
passed certification; and, as a result, in order to comply with

Java they would have to replace those libraries.
BY MR. JACOBS:
Q. And what did Google say to that?

A. They did not accept that.

Q. How did they -- your discussions with Google end?

A. Oracle's president Ms. Safra Catz and | met with a

gentleman, Mr. Alan Eustace. It's either in June or July 2010,
early July 2010. We indicated the same two issue S.

Number one, that they needed to eliminate their

implementation of the Dalvik virtual machine and replace the

class libraries that they had taken from Apache H armony with a
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compliant version from the Java community.
And they -- and that was the last discussion.
MR. JACOBS: | have no further questions.
THE COURT: Cross-examination.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Kurian.

| want to start with your discussions with the Go
representatives in 2010.

THE COURT: People are leaving and it's distracting.

Anyone else want to leave? Be my guest. But aft er

MR. VAN NEST: | can't even get an audience.
(Laughter)
MR. VAN NEST: | can't keep one.
THE COURT: No, that's fine.
All right. The floor is yours.
BY MR. VAN NEST:
Q. You mentioned, Mr. Kurian, that you had spoken with
Mr. Rubin about Apache Harmony --
A. Yes.
Q. -- is that right?
And you told him that some of the libraries in

Android were based on Apache Harmony?

A. | told him that it was our understanding that some

Mr. Van Nest starts, please stay here until the e nd.

ogle

of the
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class libraries in Android running on top of the Dalvik virtual
machine were from Apache Harmony.
Q. Okay. Now, Apache Harmony, that wasn't owned by Su n or
Oracle?

No, it was not.

Apache Harmony, that's an independent project?

A
Q
A. That is an independent project, yes.
Q
A

And Apache Harmony never took a license from Sun, r ight?
Correct. They were never granted a license from Su n.
Q. And Apache Harmony first published their product in 2005,
right?
A. I'm not sure of the date, sir.
Q. Well, did you do any investigation to determine how long
Apache Harmony had been out there without a licen se from Sun?
A. The specific version of Java that was implemented w ithin
the Dalvik virtual machine, the class library ver sion was

available as early as 2005, from Sun.

The primary contributions to Apache had been made by
Intel and IBM post that timeline.
Q. Okay. But Apache had a group of class libraries, ¢ orrect?
You have to answer verbally, Mr. Kurian.
A. Yes, sir.
Q. And many of those class libraries were in Android. At

least that's what you told the Google folks?

A. | said some of the class libraries were in Android, yes.
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Q. Did that include all of the class libraries in the

that are accused here in this case?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So all 37 of those you told Mr. Rubin were in Andro
A. Correct, yes, sir.

Q. And those 37 were also in Apache --

A. Yes, sir.

Q. -- right?

And they had been in Apache since when, 20057
A. As | said, | don't know exactly when they were in A
| said that the Java Standard version that had be
by Sun with those class libraries was as early as
Q. And Apache had been using those same libraries sinc
without a license from Sun, right?
A. Again, as | said, Intel and IBM were the primary
contributors to Apache Harmony.
Q. Excuse me, Mr. Kurian. | had a different question.
apologize for interrupting you.

These libraries were out there being used by Harm
with no license from Sun since approximately 2005
A. Yes. There had been many discussions between Apach
both Sun and the Java Community Process about res
matter. But no license had been granted.

Q. So in 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009, Apache was usin

same libraries and the same APIs we're talking ab

37 APIs

pache.
en published
2004.

e 2004,

ony
, correct?
e and
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case, without license from Sun, correct?

A. Correct. And Sun had been trying to negotiate with Apache
about a license because Apache had petitioned Sun for such a
icense.

Q. Now, you mentioned the APIs. | think you said they are

the structure that allows you to access the libra ries, the

source code in the libraries, correct?
A. | said the APIs are the blueprint of the design for how a
piece of program logic can be encapsulated for ac cess by a
calling program.
Q. Okay. But they are different from the source code that's
in the library, correct?
A. There's -- an API consists of three parts. There's a
blueprint, which is --
Q. Excuse me, Mr. Kurian. | had a more simple questio n.
They are different than the library and the sourc e
code in the library; are they not?
A. Let me explain myself, if you don't mind.
THE COURT: Let's let the witness explain his answer,
and you can do a follow-up. Give us your answer.

THE WITNESS: An API consists of three important

pieces.

There's the blueprint, which is the design of the API
itself. The specification, which says exactly ho w the
blueprint should be -- you know, what's the ratio nale for the
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design of it and the relationship between this AP
pieces. And a third piece, which is the implemen
reference implementation or source code that says
example of how this API is implemented.

BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q. Fair enough.

And with respect to all three of those elements,

Apache was using those as of, roughly, 2004, 2005

A. Perhaps, yes.

Q. And in 2007, they were still using them with no lic
from Sun?

A. Yes. They had petitioned for a license. Sun had t
with them, but they had not been granted a licens

Q. So they were still selling and still using Harmony

as 2009, without a license from Sun, right?

A. Apache does not sell APIs.

Q. Well, making --

A. They were an open source project, and there were pe
working in that open source community. But they
commercial institution that was selling software

Q. Now, at the time you talked to Mr. Rubin, Apache st
didn't have a license, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And Mr. Rubin told you Google didn't need a license

Android, right?
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A. Yes.

Q. He said, We don't need a license --

A. Yes.

Q. -- correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Eustace said, We don't need a license?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, you mentioned the Dalvik virtual machine. Tha

source code implementation in Android, correct?

A. That's a virtual machine that's implemented in Andr
yes.

Q. And you were asking in these meetings to replace th
Android virtual machine with the Java virtual mac

Oracle made, right?

A. Correct.

Q. And the Java virtual machine, that's different from

Dalvik virtual machine. At least that's what you

Mr. Rubin?
A. That's correct.
Q. It's a different implementation from the Java virtu

machine, right?

A. You mean -- did you mean the Dalvik virtual machine
different --
Q. Let me ask it again.

The Dalvik virtual machine is a different

t'sa

oid,

e
hine that
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told
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mplementation than the Java virtual machine, cor rect?
A. Yes.

Q. And you wanted Mr. Rubin to replace his virtual mac

with yours, right?

A. Correct.

Q. And pay money for that?

A. We discussed technically replacing it. And we said

would be a separate discussion on the commercial terms.
Q. Commercial terms means you wanted money for that, r

A. Sure.

Q. You would be asking for money if your product was b

used in Android?

A. Sure.

Q. Which at the time you spoke to Mr. Rubin it was not

were not using the Java virtual machine in Androi d, right?
A. Yes.

Q. They had built their own?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it was different?

A. Yes, sir?

MR. VAN NEST: | have nothing further, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Redirect, please.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. JACOBS:

Q.

Mr. Kurian, you referred to this briefly. | justw

hine

there

ight?

eing

. They

ant to
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make sure it was clear. What exactly is the -- i

commercial status of Apache Harmony?

s the

Apache Harmony has not been granted a TCK license

There is a very specific technical reason for it.
talked to Apache, and subsequently Oracle talked
of the basic requirements of TCK compliance of an
mplementation of Java is that the -- the impleme
specification has to guarantee that not only are
with the specification in their implementation, b
organization downstream from them that uses that
Java or modifies that version of Java will also r
compliant with the specification.

Now, Apache Harmony could not guarantee that
downstream users from Apache would remain complia
implementation because of the way that the Apache
license is designed.

A downstream company -- let me take a simple exam
Apache Harmony project may itself comply with tod
forward with the Java Standard Edition specificat
we certify that our test suites are passed, et ce

But an organization downstream from Apache -- pic
example -- a telecommunications vendor who takes
code from Apache, and they are free to then modif
code under the Apache license without any constra

contribution back. As a result of which, downstr
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prganizations will not be able -- you know, there
enforcement mechanism to say anybody downstream f
could be granted that license and would remain co
That's the central reason why Apache itself has n

been granted a TCK license from the Java communit
prganization.
Q. Are you aware of any commercial uses of Apache Harm
pther than the packages of class libraries that a
A. | am not. Additionally, IBM and Intel, who were th
primary contributors of the source code in Apache
now moved their source code contributions to Open

MR. JACOBS: Thank you very much.

MR. VAN NEST: Just one or two, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Fine.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. VAN NEST:

Q. Mr. Kurian, during the period before Oracle acquire
was Mr. Schwartz running Sun?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was he responsible for Sun's relationship with Apac
Harmony?

A. I'm not sure of that, sir.

He was the boss?

Q
A. He was the CEO of Sun Microsystems.
Q

Was Mr. Schwartz ultimately responsible for Sun's

s no
rom Apache
mpliant.
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re in Android?

e
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relationship with Android, as CEO, as well?
A. Perhaps, yes.

MR. VAN NEST: Nothing further, Your Honor.

MR. JACOBS: Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. May the witness step down and
be excused, not subject to recall?
MR. VAN NEST: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you, sir. You're free
fo go.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

(Witness excused)

THE COURT: All right. | think we could take on
another witness. Let's try that.

MR. BOIES: Your Honor, our next witness that we call
is Mr. Larry Page.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. JACOBS: May I retrieve an exhibit, Your Honor,
from the witness stand?

THE COURT: Yes, you may.

Now, let me be clear. This is Mr. Page of Google

MR. BOIES: Calling him as an adverse witness, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: So | want to be clear that --

MR. VAN NEST: | understand.

THE COURT: -- he's on cross-examination now,
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Mr. Van Nest, so that our house rules now apply.

All right. Mr. Page will come forward.

Welcome, sir. Please stand in the witness box an d
raise your right hand.

LARRY PAGE

called as a witness for the Plaintiff herein, hav ing been first
duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows

THE WITNESS: 1 do.

THE COURT: Welcome. Please have a seat. This
microphone moves around. Do you see how I'm movi ng mine?
You've got to point it this close. Say your name

THE WITNESS: I'm Lawrence Page.

THE COURT: Perfect.

Counsel.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. BOIES:

Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Page.

A. Good afternoon.

Q. You are currently the chief executive officer of Go ogle;
are you not, sir?

A. That's correct.

Q. And you are one of the founders of Google?

A. That's right.

Q. And since the founding of Google in 1998, you have been

one of the top three officers of Google, correct?
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A. That's correct.
Q. And you are either the largest or one of the two la rgest
shareholders of Google, correct?
A. That's correct.
Q. I'd like to direct your attention to the period of 2005.
And, in 2005, Google was considering acquiring An droid,
correct?
A. That is correct.
Q. And Android had not been initially developed by Goo gle,
but it had been developed by another small compan y, correct?
A. Android was a startup that we were working on acqui ring,
yes.
Q. And when you say "a startup,” you mean a separate c ompany?
A. Yeah, a small, a small company.
Q. And who was in charge at Google of the Android proj ect?
A. Well, once we acquired the company Android, was And y
Rubin.
MR. BOIES: May | approach, Your Honor, with Exhibit
1?
THE COURT: Yes. Did you say "1"?
MR. BOIES: Trial Exhibit 1.
THE COURT: 1. Allright. Go right ahead.
BY MR. BOIES:
Q. This is a document you are familiar with, correct, Sir?
A. Yes.
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(Trial Exhibit 1 received in evidence.)
MR. BOIES: Publish it.

(Document displayed.)
BY MR. BOIES:
Q. And this was prepared on or about July 26, 2005, co
A. That is correct.
Q. And this was prepared for a discussion of Key Strat
Decisions Around the Open Source Android Project,
A. | think this presentation was about Android, and th
the title of it, yes.
Q. And you received this at or about the time it was
prepared, correct, Sir?
A. | believe so, yes.
Q. And who prepared this?
A. Looks like it was prepared by the Android team.
Q. And that would have included who -- who would have
the head of that Android team?

A. As | already mentioned, that would be Andy Rubin as

head of the team.

Q. And --
MR. BOIES: Your Honor, | would offer this exhibit.
THE COURT: Any objection to number 17?
MR. VAN NEST: No objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Number 1 is in. Please publish it, if
you wish.
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Q. Now, let me -- let me direct your attention to page
10 of this exhibit. It says at the top "Why Java

that?

A. Yes.

Q. And it begins, "Carriers require it." Do you see t

A. Yes, | do.

Q. And the carriers there were the telecoms that provi
cell service, correct?

A. Yeah. Like Verizon or T-Mobile, or something like
Q. And it also says under "Why Java?" "Existing pool o
developers and applications.”" Do you see that?

A. Yeah, | see that.

Q. And that was an existing pool of developers to do J

programming, correct?

A. Yeah. Java programming is taught in schools and ma
places.
Q. Let me ask you to go to the next page, where it say

you see "Current Scenario"?
A. Yes.
Q. And the first item there says "Developing a clean r
implementation of a JVM."

And that stands for Java virtual machine, correct
sir?

A. Yes.

Q. And a clean room would be a project that had in it

8 of

?" Do you see
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ded

that.

ava

ny

s --do
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that did not reference, use, know the intellectua
somebody else, correct?

A. Uhm, | think a clean room, as | understand this, wo
A process that was used to develop software where

you carefully control the information you use to

Q. And in carefully controlling the information that y

to do that, you understand that you cannot use pe

that that know and are referencing somebody else'’
property, correct, sir?

A. | think in a clean room, obviously -- | assume you'
referring to developing a clean room implementati
programming language, or free Java, which obvious

need to use a description of that in order to dev

there's nothing wrong with that. You carefully c
proprietary technology that was used to develop a

Q. | just want to be sure that the question and answer

meeting when we talk about "carefully control.”

You understood that you might be able and you wer

able to use something that was publicly available

room, but that you could not use somebody else's
material, and you could not use developers who re

knew somebody else's copyrighted material. Corre

A. Uhm, I'm not an expert on what we did in our clean

| think we did nothing wrong, and | don't know de

what -- what you use or not, whether it was copyr

| property of

uld be
, you know,
do that.

ou use
ople to do

s intellectual

re
on of Java
ly you would
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or whatever.
Q. Well, sir, you know what a clean room is; don't you ?

THE COURT: Mr. Boies, you can pursue this, but be
mindful of the -- there are decisions on reverse engineering
and fair use that if you're going to ask a legal guestion,
which you are, you ought to build that into it.

Now, if you're just asking what he understood and how
they set up their clean room --

MR. BOIES: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- and what the guidelines were, that's

okay. You can do that. But you're coming very c lose to
saying -- you telling the jury what is copyrighta ble, what is
not copyrightable, when fair use is okay, when re verse
engineering is okay. And that's my job, not your job. So be
mindful of the -- you're treading very close to g etting into

issues of law. Thank you.

MR. BOIES: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. BOIES:
Q. Let me try to be very clear what I'm saying.

Within the software industry, there is a recogniz ed
concept of what a clean room is. Not a legal con cept, but
something that is recognized within the software industry.

Correct, sir?
A. Yeah. | have no reason to think that we did anythi ng that

wasn't in accordance with that.
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Q. Well, let me try to proceed maybe in order, first t 0 get
what you understand the clean room to be, and the n try to get

whether you proceeded in accordance with that.

First, let's talk about what you understand a cle an
room to be in the common industry practice of the software
ndustry.

And do you understand that in the common industry
practice of the software industry a clean room me ans that you
are using people to develop software that do not have access to
the proprietary intellectual property of other pe ople?

| think that's a yes or no question.

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Now, in terms of the clean room implementati on that
Google had, what steps did Google take to make su re that the
people who participated did not have access to Su n and later

Oracle's intellectual property?

A. I'm not familiar with the steps that were taken. L ike |
said, | have no -- | have no knowledge of any iss ues around
that.

Q. When you say you have no knowledge of what steps we re
taken, did you, in your capacity as a high execut ive at Google,
ever make any effort to determine what those stan dards were?
A. No. Nor did | have any reason to.

Q. Whose responsibility was it to find that out? Was that
Mr. Rubin?
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A. | assume it would be Mr. Rubin as head of the proje
yeah.
Q. Now, Mr. Rubin reported to you with respect to this
project, correct, sir?
A. Uhm, actually, | don't think he reported to me. He
probably reported to another executive.
Q. He reported to you as well as other executives on t
project, correct, sir?
A. Sorry, | was referring to just formal reporting.

But, you know, occasionally | would talk to him a
it, so | had some knowledge about what was going
just didn't mean -- he didn't have a formal repor
relationship to me.
Q. And is it your testimony that you never inquired of
to what procedures or standards they were using t
that the Google developers did not have access to
intellectual property?
A. Yeah, | don't recall ever talking to him about that
Q. Now, you know now that some of the developers did h
access to Sun's intellectual property, correct, s
A. | don't know anything about that.
Q. Is it your testimony that you are unaware that cert
lines of code in Android were copied, symbol for

literally copied from Sun's intellectual property

A. | know there's some disputes about a few files. An

ct,
his
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know, | know that Mr. Ellison told me -- when I m
his house, he told me that they had some, you kno
material in Android. And | disputed that with hi
said he would send me that copied material, and h
Probably because it wasn't very strong evidence.
So -- and I'm not familiar with any of the other
detail around that.
Q. Did you ever ask anybody in Google whether some lin
code had just actually been copied symbol for sym
literal copying, from Sun's intellectual property
A. | don't recall asking anybody that.
Q. And as you sit here today, it is your testimony tha
one at Google -- leave Mr. Ellison aside -- no on
has ever told you that Android includes some lite
code that were copied from Sun's intellectual pro

MR. VAN NEST: Objection, Your Honor.
BY MR. BOIES:
Q. Is that your testimony?

MR. VAN NEST: Privilege.

THE WITNESS: | already testified --

THE COURT: Wait, wait, walit.

representing Google. But, otherwise, it is a pro

whether anyone else ever told you that or you had

conversation with anyone other than a lawyer on t

Well, you may exclude from your answer a lawyer

et with him in
w, copied
m. And he
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es of
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Google.

So, please, answer the question.

THE WITNESS: Yeah, | don't recall anybody else.

BY MR. BOIES:

Q. Now, if you discovered that Android included some |
code that had been literally copied from Sun's in
property, is that something that you would feel w
of Google policy?

A. Uhm, that seems like a hypothetical question. |im
it would depend on the exact circumstances of tha
general, yeah, we would take that seriously.

Q. Is there any circumstance that you can think of tha
consistent with a clean room where you could have
line-for-line copying from Sun's intellectual pro

consistent with what Google's standards for a cle

A. Again, it's hard to answer a hypothetical, but I --
there's no reason that wouldn't be possible.

Certainly, if it were very short, for example, th

might only be -- you know, there's only one way t

plus one, for example. So if it's a very short p

it might appear to be the same but not actually b

Q. Yes, | understand something might appear to be the

THE COURT: I think we're getting into hypotheticals.

This witness says he has no direct knowledge. An

become an argument. And | think we should move t

ines of
tellectual

as a violation

agine

t, but, in

literal
perty and be
an room are?

| see

ere
0 write one

iece of code,

e copied.

same.

d now it's

0 something

Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR.

Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR,

Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Case3:10-cv-03561 WHAC HoRreUREMPASA TTIRAO0HAR )2 Pagel92 of 20415

A.
Q.
2005, correct, sir?

A.
Q.

else. He says he has no information on the subje

best to move to something new.

MR. BOIES: Yes, Your Honor. Are you finished?
THE COURT: Do what?

MR. BOIES: I just want to be sure the Court had

finished.
THE COURT: | had. Ithink it's become an argument.
MR. BOIES: Okay.
THE COURT: You made your point.
MR. BOIES: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. BOIES:
Q. Let me turn back to Exhibit 1, in the same page tha

were looking on. Do you see that the third bulle

"Must take license from Sun"?

Yeah, | see that.

And that's what Mr. Rubin and his team told you in

That's what's in the slides here.

And then down under proposal it says:
"Proposal: Google/Android, with support from
Tim Lindholm, negotiates the first OSS J2ME
JVM license with Sun.”
Do you see that?

Yeah.

And you know what OSS refers to, do you not, sir?

ct. Soit's

twe

July of
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Open source software, | would assume.
And J2ME was one of the versions of Java, correct?
Yeah, | think that was the mobile version.

"M" actually stands for Micro Edition, does it not,

A

Q

A

Q

A. I'm not familiar -- I'm not sure.
Q And then JVM is the Java virtual machine, correct,

A That's my understanding, yeah.

Q And you know who Mr. Lindholm is, don't you, sir?

A | think -- I don't know him well. 1 think he's som

who works for Google.

Q. Beyond thinking that he's somebody that works for G

he's somebody who you have asked questions of and

instructions to, is that not --

A. | don't recall him particularly.
Q. Do you recall generally?
A. Uhm, I, don't remember him well. If | met him, I a

would know who he was.

Q. Do you remember giving him some instructions and as
him some questions?

A. Not particularly, no.

Q. Do you recall asking him to do some work in connect
with Java?

A. I've already said | don't recall him.

Q. Let me ask you to look at Trial Exhibit 2, if | cou

Sir.

give

Sir?

sir?
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ssume |
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THE COURT: Use the time as you wish, but in four

minutes we will break. So, go ahead. We have fo

MR. BOIES: We could break --
THE COURT: Is this a good point?

MR. BOIES: Thisis a good time to break.

ur minutes.

THE COURT: This is a good time to break. Then this

s the time we're going to break.

All right. The jury will remember the admonition

I'm going to repeat it. No research about the ca

looking at news stories about the case or reading
listening to stories. No talking with friends, n
loved ones about the case, nor with each other ab
It will be your duty to do that soon enough, but
Thank you for being on time this morning. We wer
able to start earlier because you were on time.
hopefully, we can continue to do that. So your c
is noted and most appreciated. We'll see you bac
tomorrow. Thank you.
THE CLERK: Allrise.
(Jury out at 12:57 p.m.)
THE COURT: All right. Everyone else, be seated.
Mr. Page, you're free to go, but you're under a
direct order not to talk with any counsel or anyo
your testimony. All right?

THE WITNESS: All right.

se. No
stories or
eighbors,
out the case.

not yet.

And,

lose attention

k here

ne else about
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THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

| have a few questions for counsel that | would |

to ask. And | know these -- these are not points yetin
evidence.

Mr. Boies, you can stay right there because you m

know the answer to these questions. How many met hods -- I'm
thinking back to the file, Mr. Van Nest's file bo x thing which
helped me understand the problem. Maybe you disa gree with
that.

How many methods are in the 37 APIS? Are we talk
about thousands, or a couple hundred, or just 37 altogether?
Sounded to me like there were more than 37.

MR. JACOBS: According to Dr. Astrachan, Google's
expert, there are 8,693 methods in the 37 package S.

THE COURT: Are those the exact same ones -- putting
aside the source code -- that are in the Oracle v ersion? Or
are there differences in those methods?

MR. JACOBS: | cannot represent to you as to all
8,693. These are the ones that he identified -- I'm sorry. |
want to be -- | may be misunderstanding my notes here. Let me
take just a minute.

I'm sorry, Your Honor. | want to be sure we have
this right, so we'll get this to you.

THE COURT: All right. I would like to know what

differences there are. | know there's difference S in source
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code, but | would like to know if the methods are the same
pnes, whether there have been any added or subtra cted.

MR. JACOBS: You bet.

THE COURT: And then, in addition, next question
s -- this has all got to be proven up in due cou rse. Butlam

thinking about these problems.

Did Sun or did third parties or did some combinat ion
develop these 8,000 -- I'm talking about the ones that were now
on the -- on the Sun side of the equation, were t hey all
developed by Sun, or were some of these done by t hird parties?

Contributed to the file.

MR. JACOBS: [I'll have to get the answer to that, as

well.

The way it works, Your Honor, is if people
participate in the development of the specificati ons, the spec
lead obtains ownership of the intellectual proper ty.

And as to these 37 packages, there's no question
about ownership of the --

THE COURT: No, no --

MR. JACOBS: -- specification.

THE COURT: | am not questioning ownership.

| am wondering how they got put into the file in the
first place. Can a third party develop something and say, |
want this in the file? Or can a third party say, | want this
in the file, and just get it in? Or does somebod y have to
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approve it, or does Sun have to approve it, or ma ybe third
parties having nothing to do with developing thos e methods?
MR. JACOBS: So I think that would probably be best

explained by someone who has actually done this, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Next question. In one of the

things you gave me eatrlier, both sides referred t 0 something

called a declaration, declaration of APl elements

What is a declaration? That's in your statement of
ssues regarding copyright that I've been studyin g, trying
to -- what is the -- what do you mean by "declara tion"?

MR. JACOBS: We'll get you a formal definition of the
declaration in the Java class structure, but it i s roughly the
first line of the Application Programming Interfa ce and the
corresponding class library.

THE COURT: I'm going to let you over there have your
response if you have a different response.

My last question is, whether something is a
derivative work is that a question of fact for th e jury?

MR. JACOBS: [ don't think so, if there's an
acknowledgment of substantial similarity. I thin k the -- if
there was a dispute about substantial similarity, then there
could be a fact question.

THE COURT: All right. Let's hear what the other

side says. Take them in any order you wish.

MR. KWUN: Your Honor, Michael Kwun for Google.
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Starting with the last one, the derivative work
guestion, | think, depends a little bit on what e
claim is.

To the extent that the claim is that the -- that
a derivative work because it has the same structu
and organization, then if the Court concludes tha
structure, selection and organization isn't copyr
can't be a derivative work. Because to be a deri
t must be derived from something that's protecta

To be perfectly frank --

a different example.
As | read these write-ups that you've given me, 0
of the contentions out of several, one of the con
that even though Google says it used its own sour
looks like, from what I've heard so far, that wit
exception of some lines of code, that's true. Ho
come back by Oracle to that is, well, nonetheless
derivative work because Google had the specificat
By that | mean the plain English language manual
said what the inputs were, what the outputs were,
other files and methods were borrowed along the w
therefore, even though different source code -- i

in different source code, the 37 APIs and the 8,0

derivative works of the plain English description

xactly the

it's
re, selection
t the
ightable, it
vative work,

ble.

THE COURT: | understand that -- no. Let me give you
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files, and so forth.

MR. KWUN: Yes, Your Honor. With that formulation, |

think that it just runs completely afoul of 102(b ).

| mean, you just can't have something be a deriva tive
work because Google's code does what they describ e. I mean,
that is -- that's -- | mean, that's directly cont rary to Baker
v. Sel den.

THE COURT: All right. Maybe. Contrary to which
case?
MR. KWUN: Baker v. Sel den. That's the 1879 --
THE COURT: Oh. 18- --
MR. KWUN: | mean, it would be contrary to many other
cases, as well.
THE COURT: All right. Assume that you're wrong on
that for the sake of argument. Is the question o f derivative
work something that is a jury question or a judge question?

MR. KWUN: It could certainly be a jury question.

There are a number of legal questions that are en tangled with
it that might well render it -- there are no fact s left to the
jury.

THE COURT: Well, before we get to the point that

this goes to the jury, you lawyers have to take a gutsy
position and either say yes, it is, or, no, it's not.

But, okay. | want you to know it's on my mind. And
sooner or later you've got to, you know, make you r mind up.
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What's the answer --
MR. VAN NEST: We will, Your Honor. We'll address --
THE COURT: All right. Nobody -- everyone is going
o send me a postcard on these issues.
(Laughter)
THE COURT: | need something -- what is a
declaration?

MR. KWUN: So a declaration, there is a more -- a

more formally defined term. It's called a method signature.
And | believe that at least as a -- for lawyers' purposes, that
the declaration would be the same as the method s ignature.

| don't know if | have a disagreement with that f rom

the Oracle side or not.

THE COURT: Look. Here's your document right here.

Paragraph 2. It says that, "Oracle accuses the f ollowing:
Number 2, the declarations of the API elements,” blah blah
blah.

What did you mean when you used the word
"declaration"? It's your own word.

MR. KWUN: We meant a method signature. We also

meant to try to come as close as we could to thei r language.

But a method signature means the name of the meth od,
the variable type that it returns, and the variab le types and
order of the parameters it accepts. And it would also include
the exceptions that it throws, the errors that it throws.
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THE COURT: What would one of these items look like?
MR. KWUN: So we've talked about in the past the max
method, which identifies the maximum of two numbe rs.

The method signature for one version of the max

method would be int, which is to say that it retu rns an
nteger, max, which is the name of the method, an d then
parentheses int,int. So that means that it take two parameters

that are both integers.

Depending on who you ask, some people will -- wou Id
actually identify it as max open parentheses int A comma int B
closed parentheses.

THE COURT: Do you know anything about any other
programming languages?

MR. KWUN: Sure, some.

(Laughter)

THE COURT: Now, do you know anything about a
language called QBasic, that's very simple.

MR. KWUN: | know something about Basic, which

QBasic --

THE COURT: C or C+. May be the same way.

But take a statement called or command called ABS
parentheses closed parentheses with something in there. It
always returns the positive, the absolute value o f whatever
that number is. Like ABS paren minus 19 closed p aren would
return 19.
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MR. KWUN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. So using that as an example,
s ABS an API? Is it a method? Is it a library? Orisita
class? Or is it none of the above?
MR. KWUN: It would be a method; although, it might
be called a function in QBasic. But those terms are
semantically equivalent. So it would be a method
| would say that it would also be an API. It's a n
API one can use to access the absolute value func tionality. It
is not a class.

THE COURT: Allright. So what is, then, a class
versus the method? Is a method simply just a col lection of
methods? Is that what a class is?

MR. KWUN: It can be a collection of -- it can be a

collection of methods. It can also contain field s that store
data.

So, classes come from a particular type of progra m
called object-oriented programming. And in objec t-oriented
programming you have objects. And objects are cr eated out of a
template of sorts called a class. And the class has a way of
organizing data that you might need for that type of object.

So, for example, if you had an object that descri bed
a bicycle, you might have some data fields that s ay what color
the bike is, what size the tires are, and so fort h.

So it can have data in the class. And then it ca n
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also have methods that are going to be useful to do things to
the data that it stored in the class.

THE COURT: When you use object-oriented programming,
the word "object" there is not the same thing as object code;
s it?

MR. KWUN: No.

THE COURT: Those are two different uses of the word
‘object"?

MR. KWUN: Yes.

THE COURT: Are we going to have witnesses who are
going to be good at explaining all of this?

MR. JACOBS: Promise, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Good.

How about Google, will you have a witness who --

MR. KWUN: We have a expert withess who can answer
these sorts of questions, yes.

THE COURT: How many methods are in all of these 37
APIs, in your view?

MR. KWUN: | don't know the precise number. It's
somewhere in the thousands.

THE COURT: Now, if we went to some other company and
looked at their APIs, would they be organized rou ghly the same
way?

MR. KWUN: Well, the APIs are there to accomplish a

purpose. So if they are accomplishing some other purpose, they
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would have no resemblance to the APIs in this cas

THE COURT: All right. Well, | forgot to tell the
ury that you were not being rude when you didn't
| will remember to do that tomorrow. Okay.
All right. Thank you for the help on those thing
And anything more today before we break?

MR. JACOBS: No, Your Honor.

MR. BOIES: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: | do have my criminal calendar in 45
minutes, so I'll need the tables. You can leave
stuff over there on the side of the room.

MR. VAN NEST: Thank you, Your Honor.

MS. ANDERSON: Thank you.

(At 1:12 p.m. the proceedings were adjourned unti

Wednesday, April 18, 2012, at 7:30 a.m.)
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